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TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, November 13, 2013

1. 5:00 PM - CALL TO ORDER
2, ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Public: October 23, 2013
b. Non-public. None

5. AGENDA OVERVIEW

Special Agenda ltems

a. Youth Achievement Award
b. Deliberations and decision: Personnel issue in accordance with Town Charter 4.6a

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. 13-113 SNHU: Release landscaping bond in the amount of $112,301.
b. 13 -114 McDonalds: Release landscaping bond in the amount of $22,500.
¢. 13—-115 Mega X: Release landscaping bond in the amount of $13,475.
d. 13-116 Bond Auto Parts: Release treasurer check in the amount of $17,843.40.

7. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
8. PUBLIC INPUT: 15 Minutes

9. NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS
10. SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

11. 15 MINUTE RECESS

12. OLP BUSINESS
a. 13 =104 Alarm Monitoring

13. NEW BUSINESS

13 — 89 Revaluation Report

13 — 111 Technology Services Bid

13— 106 Emergency Operations Plan

13 - 107 Update to Fire-Rescue Fee Schedule

13 — 108 Fire-Rescue Personal Protective Equipment
13 - 112 2014 Holiday Schedule

~oQ0 TN

14. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

15. PUBLIC INPUT

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.
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16, NON-PUBLIC SESSION

NH RSA 91-A:3 ll{a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the
disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her,

NH RSA 91-A:3 ll{(c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself. (tax deeds)

17. ADJOURNMENT

Public Input

1.

Two 15-minute Public [nput sessions will be allowed during each Council
Meeting. Time will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,
no person will be allowed to speak for more than 5 minutes.

No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any meeting.
Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be

. addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town

Administrator, will determine if the question can be answered at that time.
Questions cannot be directed to an individual Councilor and must not be
personal in nature. Issues raised during Public Input, which cannot be resolved
or answered at that time, or which require additiona! discussion or research, will
be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible for researching and
responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by bringing to
the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the right
to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.
Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a
subsequent meeting.

No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the
Chair. Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during
Public Input.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.
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TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, October 23, 2013
CALL TO ORDER
Chair Sullivan callad the meeting to order at 5:09 pm.

ROLL CALL - ATTENDANCE

James Sullivan, Nancy Comai, Donald Winterton, David Ross, James Levesque, Todd Lizotte, Susan Orr,
Robert Duhaime, Adam Jennings, Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Jr. (Town Administrator), Shawn M. Tanguay,
Esquire (Council Attorney)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC HEARING ON PERSONNEL ISSUE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TOWN CHARTER 4.6a
Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Jr., Town Administrator

Attorney Buckiey (Dr. Shankle’s Attorney)

Jo Ann Duffy, Town Planner

Attorney Douglas {Jo Ann Duffy’s Attorney)

Recording Clerk — Katie Rosengren

J. Sullivan: This is public hearing on a personnel issue according to the Town Charter 4.6a regarding a
disciplinary action from the Town Administrator to Jo Ann Duffy, a department head who has requested
that this be public. We did receive a notice from Attorney Douglas who is representing Ms. Duffy
regarding the process that the Council is following so we will address those two issues regarding whether
we are holding this hearing properly first. | have the nofice dated 10/17, the first item is regarding 4.6a
which states that the hearing should be scheduled within two regular scheduled meetings of the Council
once the Council received the notice of request to have the hearing. And | would like to waive that notice
because we did adhere to the process.

T. Lizotte motioned to accept the Chairman’s assertion that he was notified of the hearing on
September 26, 2013 in accordance with the requirements under 4.6a of the Charter. Seconded by
D. Winterton.

J.Sullivan: | received a reference to that letter that was dated September 23" which was the Monday that
was before the Council meeting scheduled for September 25", The first time | was aware of a request for
a hearing for Ms. Duffy was via an email sent on Sept. 26" at 11:54 am. The letter that was sent on the
23" | have here and | actually did not receive it until recently and it's been unopened. So according to my
understanding the first time | received that notice was on the 26" so it's up to the Council to decide if we
met the requiremenis under 4.6a.

Roll Call

S. O —Yes

A. Jennings — Yes
N. Comai —- Yes

R. Duhaime — Yes
D. Winterton — Yes
D. Ross — Yes

J. Levesqgue — Yes
T. Lizotte — Yes

J. Sullivan — Yes

Vote unanimously in favor.

J. Suliivan: The second item and question of us following our rules was regarding Town Council
procedure 8 which states according to rule 8b the agenda for the regular Council meeting should be
posted by the close of business on the Wednesday prior to the regular Council meeting. However, in the
case of October 23" the agenda was not posted until Thursday, the 17", The question is did we adhere to
the proper posting rules?
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A. Jennings motioned that rule 8 is inapplicable at this type of meeting and it’s not a common
occurrence. Seconded by T. Lizotte.

D. Winterton: Clearly this meeting is scheduled more as a convenience to the volunteer members of the
Town Council where it is a portion of the Town Council meeting and that's why it is today. It is my belief
that legally we would only have to post this 24hrs before.

Roll Calt

T. Lizotte - Yes

S. Orr—Yes

A. Jennings - Yes

N. Comai — Yes

R. Duhaime - Yes

D. Winterton — Yes
D. Ross — Yes

J. Levesque — Yes
J. Sullivan — Yes

Vote unanimously in favor.,

J. Sullivan: So with that we'll proceed into the hearing. Prior to this hearing the Council met to clarify the
process that we would be following for this hearing. We do have our legal counsel here Mr. Shawn
Tanguay. We sent out the information to all of the aftorneys how we would proceed and they all have a
copy of that which indicates a brief statement from the Town Planner's legal counsel for five minutes, then
there will be a brief statement from the Administrator's legal counsel, then a presentation of testimony and
evidence by the Town Planner and following that her witnesses shall come forward and the Council will
have opportunities to ask questions as well. Once that's completed we'll move onto the second part
where the Town Administrator's legal counsel will come up and follow the same procedure with
questioning witnesses and presenting information, then the Council again can ask questions. Once that is
done there will be a closing statement from the Town Administrator's legal counsel, then from the legal
counsel for the Town Planner, then the Council will move o close the hearing. There will be a public
deliberation scheduled where the Council will make a decision. So at this point according to agreed upon
procedures we'll ask Attorney Douglas to do a five minute opening statement.

Alty. Buckley: The Town Administrator has determined that he would like to make his own statements and
present his own testimony rather than me do it | assume you won't have objection to that?

Atty. Douglas: | have no objection.
J. Suliivan: We agree to those terms since you both do.

Atty. Dougtas: Thank you Councilors | want to thank you for taking this opportunity to hear our appeal
today. I just need to state for the record that the way my motion to dismiss was characterized was not the
way that | intended it to be. This woman has worked for the town for more than 20 years and served the
fown well. Her job per her job description is to provide guidance to the Planning Board. Per request of a
Planning Board member she researched the current sign ordinance and presented it and possible
alternatives to a single Planning Board member. She then received an ambiguous email from the Town
Administrator who said he was unsure about the appropriateness of her communication with that single
Planning Board member but she should use the documents that were utilized and continue to research
themn. She did this, and without any clear direction from the Town Administrator she met with the Planning
Board member again. She was not told she could not meet with that Planning Board member again. After
this the Town Administrator derived that he had given her clear instruction not to meet with that Planning
Board member then wrote her up for insubordination. Ms. Duffy decided to explain herself and apologize
for the perceived insubordination. She did not intend to be insubordinate. This apology letter wasn't
sufficient for Dr. Shankle. He met with Jo Ann Duffy again and this time he criticized her upbringing and
threatened to discharge her unless she accepted the following: training each day for a year with him for
an hour where he would pick a topic of study and if she was late once for these meetings she could be
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discharged. Believing the meeting with the Planning Board member was the issue, Jo Ann Duffy offered
to submit to training under the Right to Know law and offered to prepare a training herself after she
properly received this training. This suggestion of training and what should have been the substantive
issue was not sufficient for Dr. Shankle. At the end of the hearing foday you will see that there is not just
cause for the discipline of Jo Ann Duffy. This disciplinary action is not reasonable. Thank you.

J.Sullivan: Thank you very muich.

Dr. Shankle: I'd like to open by making three points. 1. My goal today is to present to you the information
that | had available when | wrote the letter to Jo Ann on 9/20. | believe then and | believe now that Jo Ann
was part of a small group of people tasked by the Planning Board to work on the sign ordinance on their
behalf. | further believe then and believe now that this group were a public body as envisioned in RSA 91-
A and that as a department head she should have understood this and complied with the law. The letter
that i sent her on 9/20 regarding her discipline seems to have led to the development of an alternate
reality. 2. Regarding whether the disciplinary action | am reguesting is reasonable considering the
offense, her actions have demonstrated a lack of understanding of the Right to Know Law and also basic
management techniques. All | am is suggesting is between 150 and 180 hours of training, this is roughly
the equivalent a student would be expected to put into in a one semester, three credit course if you
include study time. 3. This is about the public’s right to know what their government is doing and to see
public policy being developed. | suspect we’'ll see attempts to nitpick the law or shoot at loopholes, but |
think we should expect more than that from our town’s staff. | want to conclude that | believe then and |
believe now that Jo Ann was part of a small group of people tasked by the Planning Board to work on the
sign ordinance on their behalf. | further believe then and believe now that therefore they were a public
body as envisioned in RSA 91-A and that as a department head she should have understood this and
complied with the law.

Atty. Douglas: | have a number of exhibits | would like the Councilors to review as 1 take Jo Ann’s
testimony. Might | distribute those to you now?

J. Sullivan: Please.

Atty. Buckley: On behalf of the Town Administrator in regards to her exhibit package | object to the
attempt to submit the affidavit from Richard Marshall as he is not going to be a live witness. | can’t cross-
examine a piece of paper. | request to remove the letter from Planning Board member Richard Marshall.

Atty. Douglas: The rules of evidence do not apply here, this is a hearsay rule, We were given notice of
this hearing as of mid-day October 17", we had four days to call our witnesses. Mr. Marshall was
prepared to testify for her but could not make this hearing. Dr. Shankle has put the interests of a few
select Planning Board members at issue and in order for Jo Ann to defend herself Mr. Marshall's
testimony should be heard.

J.Sullivan: We’re going to hold off on ruling whether we'll take the information from Mr. Marshall.
Atty. Buckley: | think the witness should be sworn in.

J.Sullivan: Please swear in each witness

Attorney Douglas swore in Jo Ann Duffy, Town Planner

J. Duffy: | was first hired by the Town of Hooksett on July 1, 1993 as a land use clerk. | received several
promotions while employed by the town. July 1 of this year makes twenty years. Some of my titles have
included: Administrative Assistant, Assistant Planner, Planning Coordinator and Town Planner. | was
promoted to Town Planner in February 2007. My job description outlines my duties which my basic duties
are to be in charge of the Community Development department. | supervise our staff, have a lot to do with
the business community and assist the Planning Board. Our department also helps the Planning Board
each year update the Master Plan, all the zoning ordinances each year and the development regulations.
| provide regulatory advice to the Planning Board on a regular basis.

Atty. Douglas: Have you received any positive feedback regarding your performance?
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J. Duffy: Yes, regularly from the developers and applicants in town. | try to bring people together and act
as a middle man. | was a Planning Board member myself in Goffstown so | understand how it works.

I've received letters complimenting my work most recently from Merchants Motors, a realty company in
town and one letter from the organization that runs Robie's store due to some legislation that | testified for
recently, as well as the library. The Planning Board talked about the Sign Committee as a result of the
Bass Pro project which required a (ot of variances for their signs. Mr. Walsh, a Planning Board member,
attended a Zoning Board meeting and came back to the Planning Board and suggested that we make

changes to our sign ordinance which was approved by unanimous decision at the August 5th Planning
Board meeting.

Atty. Douglas: Was there a small group of peopie who tasked you with working on the sign ordinance on
their behalf?

J. Duffy; No, Tom Walsh said we would get together and talk about it and he brought it up at the next
Planning Board meeting and they said to go ahead with it and the others decided to participate. Tom is a
regular member and Mr. Marshall is the Vice-Chairman.

Atty. Douglas: Were you aware of any hidden agenda that they had?

J. Duffy: No they were concerned with the number of businesses coming forward for waivers and wanted
to cut down on the number of businesses coming for waivers. They asked me at the August 19th meeting,
when Mr. Marshall and Mr. Walsh volunteered to be on the subcommittee, they said why not meet with
staff first then we'll bring it to the subcommittee when there is cne, there wasn't a subcommittee at that
time. The Planning Board agreed, Lec Lessard also volunieered and we ail agreed to meet on August
28" We met with Mr. Marshall, Carolyn Cronin, Matt Lavoie, and Leo Lessard. Tom Walsh was not able
to make it.

Atty. Douglas: Was it unusual to meet with these people, and what is Leo's title?

J. Duffy: Leo is the Director of Public Works. No yearly we come up with zoning changes for the Planning
Board to assess, review, and decide if they want to move forward with it and have often met with the
Chairman.

Atty. Douglas: Is there any record of the Planning Board asking you to facilitate this meeting?
J. Duffy: Yes in their minutes which are on the town’s website.
Atty. Douglas: Was Dr. Shankle at the August 19" meeting?

J. Duffy: | don't believe so. Carolyn provided all copies of our sign ordinances and we talked about:
merging the three ordinances into one, what the prohlem areas seem to be and how we can do things
better. Mr. Marshall has been a member of the Planning Board for a long time and has seen a lot so he
provided a good historical perspective. After that Carolyn researched what other towns do across the
country with their signs, red-lined our suggestions and distributed this information as well as a bookiet on
how to form a sign committee electronically. She put it fogether after the meeting and distributed it.

We were hoping to give this to the Planning Board as helpful infermation once they got started.

Atly. Douglas: Did you hear from Dr. Shankle about this mesting?

J.Duffy: We had two meetings with Mr. Marshall, the first on the 28" and the next day | was on vacation
and | received an email from Dr. Shankle that said that he didn't realize that a Planning Board member
would be attending this meeting and that he thought it would only be staff and he wasn’t sure if it was
appropriate, and that once the Sign Committee meets | would have to explain to them what had occurred.
Aity. Douglas: So he understood that the Sign Committee hadn’t met yet?

J. Duffy: Yes
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Atty. Douglas: Did you interpret the second statement from his email as an objection fo the draft
ordinance?

J. Duffy: No. And | think the goal of the Planning Board via the Sign Committee would be to cut down the
number of waivers and variances. it was the entire board’s concern.

Atty. Douglas: Did you think you were in violation of any law?

J. Duffy: No, | responded to Dr. Shankle that the Planning Board had discussed this on the 19" and that
we do some preliminary work. | thought it was straight forward and didn’t see any issue with it

and | never heard from him when | returned fo work. | never saw him. He didn't say that | shouldn’t meet
with Mr. Marshall anymore and on September 3rd Mr. Marshal! called and spoke with Carolyn and asked
if he could stop by the next day te ask some questions regarding her red-line. Then she asked me if she
should invite Leo and | said well if he can it's not a meeting but yes if he can stop by, so she sent him an
email saying this. Then we met to go over Mr. Marshall's concerns. Leo was there and at one point Matt
Lavoie came in. Leo did not say that he was aware that we shouldn't have this meeting. He did send me
an email that morning saying that he thought we should invite Dr. Shankle or at least tell him about it.
Halfway through the meeting Dr. Shankle walked into the room and then walked out. Leo got nervous and
said that he was in frouble and that Dr. Shankle had told him not to meet and was not in favor of these
meetings. After the meeting | received an email from Dr. Shankle to both Leo and | saying that he told us
not to have these meetings and he sounded mad.

Recording Clerk — AnnMarie White

J Duffy: He said that neither one of us are to provide staff support and referred to an email regarding not
doing anything further.

Attorney Douglas: Did Dr. Shankle tell you this was inappropriate?
J. Duffy: No. I had no indication | did anything wrong.
Attorney Douglas: Did you meet with Dr. Shankle that Thursday?

J. Duffy: Yes. | was 5 minutes late. | had a TRC meeting which ran late. Dr. Shankle did not come out
and [ was handed a letter from him.

Attorney Douglas: Do you recognize the letter on p102?

J. Duffy: Yes, that is the ietter.

Attorney Douglas: What did the letter ask you to do?

J. Duffy: The letter asked me to explain why we did what we did.
Attorney Douglas: What did you do?

J. Duffy: He wanted the letter no later than 8:05 on Monday, Sept. 9, so Sunday night | sent him a letter
via email explaining why | did what | did and apelogized for lack of mis-communication.

Attorney Douglas: Is Exhibit 106 the letter you wrote?
J. Duffy: Yes.
Attorney Douglas: How did you close out that letter?

J. Duffy: |t said, | hope we can put this behind us, continue to work together and work things out in the
future.

Attorney Douglas: Did Dr. Shankle respond to this lefter?
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J. Duffy: He had me come in to his office. When | got there he questioned me for about 40 minutes as to
what happened and why.

Attorney Douglas: Was anyone else present?

J. Duffy: Donna Fitzpatrick was taking notes.

Attorney Douglas: Did you take notes as well?

J. Duffy; Yes.

Attorney Douglas: Is Exhibit 107 your notes?

J. Duffy; Yes.

Aftorney Douglas: Are the notes on p109 Donng Fitzpairick's notes?
J. Duffy: Beginning on p108 are Donna's notes.

Attorney Douglas: Please turn your attention to p111. Could you read the last line of Donna's notes, next

to (j).

J. Duffy: Yes. “l| wasn't raised to disrespect my boss [ am not here to pick a fight, just here to do my job",
Attorney Douglas: What happened after this meeting?

J. Duffy: Some time went by and on Sept, 20 | received a notice of disciplinary action.

Attorney Douglas: How long did Dr. Shankle propose that you be disciplined for?

J. Duffy: He said what | had done was grounds for dismissal, however, since | was a long term employee
C:C\;vtsii:nso-ffering me a training session for 1 year, 5 days a week, with the exception of holidays and

Attorney Douglas: What does that training session look like?

J. Duffy: It was open-ended, could be held here or any other place he chose, and would include topics
that he chose.

Attorney Douglas: What would happen if your were late to one of these sessions?
J. Duffy: If I were late or did not show for 1 time, that it would be grounds for dismissal,

Attorney Douglas: Was anyone else who attended the Aug. 28 or Sept. 4 meeting disciplined in any
way?

J. Duffy: Carolyn and Matt were given a training session for 4 days, for 1 hour.
Atiormey Douglas: Did Dr. Shankle offer this to you?

J. Duffy: No.

Atiorney Douglas: Did you ask him if you could do this?

J. Duffy: During the time period after | filed the appeal, Dr. Shankle, through his attorney, had contacted
my attorney.
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Attorney Buckley: | object. We have had discussions on behalf of the Town Administraior to the extent
that we had off the record discussions that we had tried to come to some middle ground. That is not an
appropriate subject of testimony. | would object anything along the lines of a proposal that is different that
what was stated in the disciplinary letter.

Atiorney Douglas: The evidence rule, that | believe Attorney Buckley is referring to, precludes settlement
discussions for the purposes of showing liability. When a plaintiff offers evidence of settlement
discussions as a way of saying he may have done something wrong, this is excluded. This is distinct from
the evidence rule. This is the Plaintiff saying, | offered to settle which suggests that she acknowledges
that there are things she could have learned about the Right-to-Know law. The reasonableness of Dr.
Shankle's discipline is at issue where Miss Duffy counter proposed a reasonable resolution to this matter.

Attorney Buckley: If I'm going to make a compromise to a personnel matter, it becomes the subject of a
debate in a judicatory proceeding. | am not going to make compromises or proposals. It is inappropriate
to discuss a compromise offer whether made by the Town Planner or discussed by the Town
Administrator. | object to this line of questioning or the evidence.

J. Sullivan: We should try to remain on topic with the extent of the discipline. | would encourage you to
stay away from alternates to discipline. Our task as Council is to discipline.

Attorney Douglas: Was Leo Lessard disciplined in any way?

Atlorney Buckley: Again, we have to be cautious. We have another town employee who has rights as
does the Town Administrator. If a town employee who is not a subject of this hearing suddenly has
matters involving his personnel file, that employee has the right to say they do or do not consent to have it
heard. If Mr. Lessard wanted to have a public hearing he would have requested one.

Attorney Douglas: The relevance of the information, is that if Dr. Shankle did indeed fail to discipline Mr.
Lessard or disciplined him in a more lenient way that is probative of him targeting JoAnn Duffy, without
cause. They are both department heads. If he was treated differently for the same conduct, that should be
considered.

J. Sullivan: | agree with this line of questioning. If Mr. Lessard was part of the Committee and was
engaged in that, | think it is relevant to find out if there was equal treatment.

T. Lizotte: Would the other employee, that did not ask fo be in public, be afforded that testimony fo be in
non-public.

Attorney Tanguay: The subject matter tonight is Miss Duffy's disciplinary action, not Mr. Lessard's. The
question asked was whether or not someone who is working in concert with Miss Duffy during these
meetings received equivalent disciplinary agtion.

Attorney Buckley: I've just consulted with Mr. Lessard and he does not object to this discussion taking
place in open session.

Attorney Douglas: Was Lec Lessard disciplined?
J. Duffy: | did not see a letter but Leo told me he was disciplined.
Attorney Douglas: When was he disciplined?

J. Duffy: He was disciplined 11 days after | was and after | had filed my appeal. | believe his discipline
was for 6 months of training.

Attorney Douglas: Your discipline was for how long?
J. Duffy: 1 year.

Attorney Douglas: Has Dr. Shankie ever made statements regarding your age?
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Aftorney Buckley: | am going to object.
Attorney Douglas: It is relevant regarding a pretextural note of discipline.

Attorney Buckley: | would still object. We are going into areas that are not the proper subject of this
hearing.

J. Sullivan: 1 am going to agree that issue is outside the scope of this disciplinary hearing.
Attorney Douglas: What has happened with the Sign Committee since the discipline letter?

J. Duffy: There was an organizational meeting that was supposed to be held on Sept. 23"

Attorney Douglas: Was that meeting publicly Noticed.

J. Duffy: It was not an official Sign Committee meeting because the Committee had not been appointed
yet. It was a Committee meeting to find out who would like to serve on the Committee.

Attorney Buckley: Who was in charge of Noticing it?

J. Duffy. My office was. At the time we invited members of the Zoning Board, Planning Board and
Economic Development Committee (EDC). The meeting was held and we obtained the names of those
people who were interested. Then we put in on the Oct. 7 Planning Board agenda and the members of
the Sign Committee were appointed. We had a meeting scheduled for Oct. 8. We advertised it as a Sign
Commitiee meeting. Late in the day it was mentioned to me that Dr. Shankle had advised that he felt it
was not appropriately Noticed because the members of the EDC constituted a quorum of that Committee.
We canceled the meeting and notified the members. | then called the Municipal Association because |
had not heard of this before unless it was advertised as a joint committee meeting.

Attorney Douglas: Is the Municipal Association the regular resource for you for this kind of information?

J. Duffy: Yes. We contact the Association for simple matters because they don't charge us. | spoke with
Attorney Sanderson and he advised me that we should include a note on the agenda stating there may
be a quorum of the EDC. We then re-posted for an Oct. 15 meeting.

Attorney Douglas: Then what happened.

J. Duffy: On the morning of Oct. 15, Dr. Shankle told one of my staff that he could not find the Notice on
the website for EDC only one for the Sign Committee. | told him what Attorney Sanderson said. Altorney
Buckley disagreed. | also relayed the information to Dr. Shankle and told him that | respectfully disagreed.
Mr. Walsh was in my office for something else and | asked him if he would mind calling Attorney Buckley
with me. My view was if we advertised it as EDC as well, then other members of the EDC could attend
and it looked like they were having a meeting when they were not. Attorney Buckley advised to be
prudent so we canceled the meeting. We have a meeting scheduled for Oct. 28 and | did 3 different
agendas for Planning Board, EDC and Sign Committee and they are posted in all 3 places on the website
as well as the public postings.

Attorney Douglas: At any time did you ever prepare, draft, or communicate information to the Planning
Board for any personal or political gain?

J. Duffy: No.
Attorney Douglas: At any time did Dr. Shankle mention a concern about catering to businesses in town?
J. Duffy: When | was in his office on the 9", he seemed to be upset that Dick Marshall was involved in

the preliminary meetings. He asked me several times if | thought Mr. Marshall was anti-businesses. | said
that | do not feel that he is.
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J. Sulfivan: At this time, | would invite Legal Counsel for Dr. Shankle to question.

Attorney Buckley: 1 am going to hand out an exhibit packet that | wilt ask JoAnn to reference. Do you
agree that you are a town employee as well as a department head and are subject to the towns personnel
plan?

J. Duffy; Yes.

Attorney Buckley: | have highlighted p20 and p21 of the personnel plan and will read those sections. Do
you agree that | have read p20, in the section “Standards of Conduct’ of the Towns Personnel Plan
regarding prohibited behaviors and p21, the section referring to insubordination being a grounds for
disciplinary action, correctly?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: Looking at the exhibit packet that | have supplied to the Council, please turn to p2.
This is an email forwarded by Donna Fitzpatrick sending an attachment to all of the Planning Board and
yourself. Is that correct?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: You were a recipient?

J. Duffy. Yes.

Attorney Buckley: That email was forwarding a letter dated January 22, 2013, that the Town Council
Chairman had sent, that was designed to bring to your attention, as well as to Boards and Committee

members, recent changes to the Right-to Know faw.

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: Looking at p5, would you agree that definitions of a public body now includes an
advisory body?

J. Duffy: Yes,

Attorney Buckley: | am going to read RSA 91-A:1-a (V1) (d) located on p5 of the exhibit. Did | read that
correctly?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: Tuming to p11 and p13 of the packet, this was a meeting of the Planning Board on
Aug. 5, 2013, where the initial discussions took place with developing a Sign Commitiee sub-committee
of the Planning Board. Is that correct?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Aftorney Buckiey: On p15 of the packet, it shows that the Planning Board met again on Aug.19. One of

the things it says is that, based on the prior meeting of Aug. 5, people had volunteered to be on the
Committee.

J. Duffy: We volunteered as staff not as Committee members.

Attorney Buckley: Two standing members of the Planning Board had said that they would sit on the sub-
committee.

J. Duffy: They volunteered to be on the sub-committee.
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Attorney Buckley: Then there was a discussion about meeting, where Mr. Marshall said he was available
during the day and you and Leo would be available during the day. Is that correct?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: Mr. Walsh then said nighttime was best for him, but if you could post the daytime
meeting there is a good chance he could aftend.

J. Duffy: I thought he was talking about the actual Sign Committee.

Atftorney Buckley: It is clear to me that he said there should be a posting taking place and a posting
refers to the requirement under the Right-to-Know law. Correct?

J. Duffy: | don't believe he was referring to the Right-to-Know law since the Sign Committee had not yet
been appointed.

Attorney Buckley: On p17 of the submitted records of the Town Administrator are minutes of the EDC of
Aug. 27, 2013. Highlighted with pen marks on the margin is a nofe [ will read regarding a comment at the
meeting, about an invitation by you to Board members, fo a Sign Committee meeting on Aug. 28. Did |
read that correctly.

J. Duffy: It was read correctly. The term Sign Committee was being used loosely at the time. The Sign
Committee never happened until Oct 7. | should have called it an organizational meeting instead. 1 was
wrong in calling it Sign Committee.

Attorney Buckley: Nevertheless that is what appears in the EDC minutes. Is that carrect?

J. Duffy: Correct.

Attorney Buckley: To be clear in an email to you from Dr. Shankle he says he is not sure that was
appropriate and it should be disclosed in your first meeting with the Committee. He is saying he knew that
you had a meeting on Aug. 28, and that Mr. Marshall, yourself, Leo Lessard, the Code Enforcement
Officer and Carolyn Cranin were there. Correct?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: He is telling you that he saw you had a meeting and did not think it was appropriate.
Did you understand the word appropriate?

J. Duffy: | did understand and that is why | replied right away.

Attorney Buckley: In your reply you said the draft is just a starting point so we can move forward from
there rather then discussing the same thing over and over. It sounds like you wanted to have a meeting
with your group and develop the draft outside of the view of the public so you didn't have to spend hours
discussing the same think over and over.

J. Duffy: That was not my intention. There were members that were interested in serving that are
members of the EDC and they are not familiar with our sign ordinance. If | had a conversation with Dr.
Shankie things might have been able to have been resoclved but he has not spoken to me since Sept. 4
except for at a department head meeting.

Attorney Buckley: If your supervisor is telling you something is inappropriate, wouldn't you make sure you
got the all clear?

J. Duffy: When he said he wasn't sure it was appropriate and should be disclosed | did not take that to
mean we should not work on the project as the Planning Board had given the ok to do. There was no
Committee at the fime so we were not violating the Right-to-Know law.
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Attorney Buckley: The new statute carries with it a new definition of an Advisory Committee and it is very
clear that it is a sub-committee or any Committee advising a sub-committee. Are you saying this group
you had together was not advising the Planning Board on the content of the proposed sign ordinance
changes?

J. Duffy: | am saying that the advisory committee was the sub-committee, not my staff. It says in the law
that the advisory commitiee is appointed by the appointing authority which is the Planning Board. They
appoint the Sign Committee which is the advisory committee, not the staff and Mr. Marshall,

Aftorney Buckley: But only by virtue of the fact that Mr. Walsh is there, your position is that as long as
only one Planning Board member is present that is not a sub-committee of the Planning Board?

J. Duffy: There was no quorum of the Planning Board present.

Attorney Buckley: We are not talking about a guorum of the Planning Board. We are talking about this
meeting and those who are going to revise the sign ordinance and do it in a way you are going to do it
yourselves with no public input.

J. Duffy: An email can be perceived in different ways. | never had any intention of keeping the public out
of this process.

Attorney Buckley: You are at the point where Carolyn is asking Leo Lessard to come to a meeting and he
sends an email to you that states you should invite Dr. Shankle. Do you think your fellow department
head put you on notice that you should be careful and should include Dr. Shankle?

J. Duffy: No because Dr. Shankle never said anything to me about not holding a meeting with staff and a
Planning Board member. Leo said Dr. Shankle should be invited. | didn't think it was necessary because
the only thing we were doing was going over the current sign ordinance not making any decisions.

Attorney Buckiey: We don't have a lot of information of what took place at the meeting except a letter
from Mr. Lessard.

Attorney Douglas: How is it that Mr. Marshall's statement is not allowed but Mr. Lessard's is?

J. Sullivan: The Council nor | have decided whether or not we would get to Mr. Marshall's affidavit. We

are bringing this in because he received discipline as well so | believe it is within the scope of this
hearing.

Attorney Buckiey: | am trying to understand the context of Sept. 4. Mr. Lessard was entering your office
and you were already there with Mr. Marshall when Dr, Shankle entered?

J. Duffy: Yes. We were sitting around the table talking about the edits. Dr. Shankle walked in, fooked
around, said nothing, and walked out. Mr. Lessard said that he was in trouble and Dr. Shankle did not
want this meeting to occur. That is when we became aware of it.

Attorney Buckley: That is not was Leo Lessard said. He says when he entered the meeting he noticed
Dr. Shankle was not present and asked if he was notified. Did this happen?

J. Duffy: Yes, but he never said why he wanted o know until after Dr. Shankle came into the room.

Attorney Buckley: He goes on to say that he was told you were only meeting on changes and that would
not be a problem and it was stated from both JoAnn and Dick that this was ok'd by the Planning Board.
Leo said he stated, "It doesn't matter, Dean wants to know". At that point Dick stated, “Dean is not in
charge of the Planning Board. If there is a problem I will discuss it with Dean”. Leo replied, "You are right,
but he is in charge of us and | think you should talk to him.” Did that take place?

J. Duffy: | do not remember the exact words but | do remember Leo said he was going to be in trouble
because Dr. Shankle told him not to meet again.
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Attorney Buckiey: So you are not saying this was not said, you do not recall hearing the words.
J. Duffy: Correct. There are parts of that | don't recall.

Attorney Buckley: If a Planning Board member says something like that in your presence about your
supervisor and you did not say anything to make clear to that Planning Board member that the Town
Administrator runs the town, don't you think that is a form of insubordination on your part?

J. Duffy: Mr. Marshall has been on the Planning Board for 41 years, he states what he wants to and |
have no control over what he says. | just listened. It wasn't even a meeting. It was Mr. Marshall stopping
by to go over some edits that he thought Carolyn had left out.

Attorney Buckley: The point | am trying to make is the level of discipline. | am comparing and contrasting
the reaction of the depariment heads responding to the same situation in a different way. It appears that
Mr. Lessard was concerned about the role of the Town Administrator and you were not.

J. Duffy: Mr. Lessard was concerned about himself getting into trouble. He said we were going to be in
trouble because Dean didn't want us to meet because apparently Dean had told that to him but never said
anything fo me.

Attorney Buckley: Initially, Dr. Shankie sent you a letter which is located on p33 of the materials. 1
understand a similar letter was sent to Mr. Lessard, where he takes you to task but says he was not
immediately disciplining you, but stating that he had concerns and was thinking about a form of discipline
and asking you to explain yourself in writing. Was that what this letter was about?

J. Duffy: Yes.

Attorney Buckley: He waited to decide what he was going to do affer he received your reply. Your reply is
found on p41. Correct?

J. Duffy: Yes.
Attorney Buckley: One of the issues Dr. Shankle later raises in his Notice of Disciplinary Action is
Afttorney Douglas: We are talking about future testimony about what Dr. Shankle will later raise?

Attorney Buckley: 1 am asking to get a picture from her as to how she was responding to Dr. Shankle's
statement that he feli discipline was necessary. What appears to be the case, is that you are saying that
because the Planning Board asked you to do certain things you felt you had to follow their directives? s
that a fair statement?

J. Duffy: | explained to Dr. Shankle that the Planning Board had authorized two Planning Board members
to meet with staff. | understand that | work for Dr. Shankle, not the Planning Board, however, | staff the
Planning Board and it was the consensus of that Board to go ahead. | felt there was nothing wrong
because we were not holding a meeting nor did we have a quorum.

Attorney Buckley: Isn't that one of the issues Dr. Shankle raised, that he felt you were not taking
responsibility and were placing blame on others.

J. Duffy: 1 never placed blame on the Planning Board. | brought that up to show Dr. Shankle that the
Planning Board had discussed this matter and there wasn't any malice.

Attorney Buckley: So we are clear about the work of this advisory group of the Planning Board that met
on Aug. 28 and Sept. 4. There is an email found starting on p48 of the materials and then the edited
documents of the town zoning ordinance which are highlighted and include edits. | have counted 28
separate edits to the town ordinances as well as two separate new sections. All of this work was done
without public notice, without minutes kept as to how you reached these decisions, and the public had no
notice they were taking place until you started having meetings of the Sign Committee with public nofice.
Is that correct?
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J. Duffy: The only thing we were doing was brainstorming so the not yet assigned Sign Committee could
have some material to begin working with. The edits that you see are repetitive throughout the three
different sign ordinances because some of them all say the same thing. We were not trying fo
recommend anything because we do not have that authority. This is no different from any other year
when staff provides information exactly as this to the Planning Board to begin debating what zoning
ordinances they would like to change.

Attorney Buckley: In this instance the red-line version of these changes is a product of a meeting of a
member of the Planning Board, made by consensus of the Planning Board, not just staff members.

J. Duffy. There was not an advisory group or any other group. It was staff and cne member of the
Planning Board. This is the same thing we do year after year. A Planning Board membsr can offer
advice,

Attorney Buckley: In hindsight, would you agree that any time you have a Planning Board member
participating in any such group, it should be posted as a sub-committee with Public Notice and minutes?

J. Duffy. No. We were not a Committee. If we were appointed as the Sign Committee then yes but there
was no Sign Committee until Oct. 7.

Attorney Buckley: No further questions.

Attorney Douglas: | do not have a redirect. However, | would like to move the admission of the affidavit of
Mr. Marshall, on grounds that the statement by Leo Lessard, referencing the substance of the Sept. 4
meeting, has been admitted. In fairmess requires that, Mr. Marshall's affidavit would similarly be admitted.

Attorney Buckley: 1don't think it is the same thing. Regardless, Mr. Lessard is here and we could call him
on direct and ask him if his letter is accurate.

J. Sullivan: Let me rule on the request from Counselor Douglas.

Attorney Tanguay: To be clear, Attorney Douglas you are talking about the Mr. Marshall's affidavit?
Alftorney Douglas: Yes.

Attorney Tanguay: Attorney Buckiey you are discussing Mr. Lessard?

Attorney Buckley: They are totally different situations. It is inadmissible because | cannot cross-examine
~ Mr. Marshall.

J. Sullivan: At this point we are going to take that under advisement.

Attorney Douglas: No redirect.

J. Sullivan: At this point the Council might ask guestions.

N. Comai: When was the |ast time you have read the Right-to-Know law?

J. Duffy: A few days agoe.

N. Comai: The formal Committee was created on Oct. 177

J. Duffy: Oct. 7.

N. Comai: If you could go to your email from you to Dr. Shankle on Aug. 29, which is in the packet from
Counselor Buckley on p22, Exhibit 6. On Aug. 19, they talked about having a Committee, however, on

Aug. 29 you stated the Committee was formed as a sub-committee by the Planning Board. That tells me
a Committee was formed.
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J. Duffy: It should have said the idea of a Committee was formed. It meant the Planning Board had
agreed to form a sub-commitiee.

N. Comai: You stated earlier that at the meeting that was held with Mr. Marshall and a few others at
10:00 am, you were only going to talk about present ordinances.

J. Duffy: Which meeting are you talking about?

N. Comai: The Sept. 4 meeting.

J. Duffy: That was the intention of our first meeting to talk about the current ordinances and what was
wrong with them. At the Sept. 4 meeting we were only going over edits and Carolyn had left out a few
things and Dick wanted to correct that.

N. Comai: So Aug. 28 was the first organizational meeting and Sept. 4 the edits had been created?

J. Duffy: The red-lined version you have in your packet was created as a result of the Aug. 28 meeting
and they were then distributed to the staff, Mr. Marshall and Mr. Walsh. Then we met again with Mr.
Marshall because he had corrections to be made that Carolyn had left off.

N. Comai: Had the formal Committee met yet?

J. Duffy: No. They plan to meet on Oct. 28.

N. Comai: So there are no minutes because there has been no formal Commitiee established?

J. Duffy: Correct. We did have the organizational meeting on Sept. 23 to find out who was interested in
serving and there are minutes of that.

N. Comai: What makes that meeting different than a formal one?

J. Duffy: The Planning Board wanted to first find out who was interested and figure out what would work
as far as scheduling.

N. Comai: Who is on the Committee?

J. Duffy: 5 from EDC: Mr. Winterton (EDC and Planning Board ) Mark Sanborn, Leslie Boswak, David
Scarpetti, and Matt Mercier. We also have Dick Marshall and Tom Walsh.

S. Orr: Is it a common occurrence for @ member of the Planning Board to pop in to have communication
with your department?

J. Duffy: Yes. It happens often.

R. Duhaime: If Mr. Marshall was Chairman, would he be able to serve?

J. Duffy: He could. There was no restriction.

D. Winterton: In your lefter on p41 to Dr. Shankle, in Attorney Buckley's packet, it says that the Planning
Board “suggest at the meeting.” Tonight 1 think | am hearing that the Planning Board authorized the
meeting. Is there a difference?

J. Duffy: They authorized the meeting by consensus.

T. Lizotte: Referencing, p64 from Attorney Douglas's packet. The email coming from Carolyn Cronin on
Aug. 29 refers the subject matter to yesterday's Sign Committee meeting. Did everyone understand that it

was not a Sign Committee meeting? | am wondering if Carolyn believed it was a Sign Committee meeting
based on what it says in the subject of her email.
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J. Duffy: No one believed it was a Sign Committee meeting. | am guilty of calling it a Sign Committee
when it was not yet a Committee. | should have calied it a preliminary Sign Committee meeting.

T. Lizotte: How long did the Aug. 28 meeting go on for?
J. Duffy: Approximately 2 hours.
T. Lizotte: Was there a discussion and debate on the edits?

J. Duffy. it was very informal. It was a brainstorming session and we threw out there what we felt the
concerns by the business owners as to what they might like to see by way of suggestions may be. The
Code Enforcement Officer was consulted about complaints that he has received. When Carolyn put the
edits together it was just as a starting point as to where there were problems. Once the Sign Committee
met they could have fossed it in the garbage.

J. Sullivan: It appears that Aug. 5 was the Initial discussion on forming a Sign Committee. Since then the
Committee has not meat?

J. Duffy: Correct.

J. Sullivan: Referencing the email from Dr. Shankle, dated Aug. 29, located on p22 in the documents
from Miss Douglas, where he says, “I'm not sure that was appropriate and it should be disclosed at the 1%
meeting of the Committee. | would have asked what was inappropriate about it. Did that ever come to
your mind to ask? What was your thought process?

J. Duffy: i typed it up quickly. | was at horne on vacation with my famity. | believed he thought it was
inappropriate because he thought we were having some kind of a meeting without it being posted. That is
when | explained to him that it was the Planning Board's idea and it was just a staff meeting with one
Planning Board member present.

J. Sullivan: So you never thought to ask Dr. Shankle what was inappropriate?

J. Duffy: It did not occur to me because | knew | didn't do anything wrong.

D. Ross: What do you consider the relationship between your position and that of Mr. Marshall?

J. Duffy: 1 am there to advise the Planning Board and Mr. Marshall has been on that Board for 41 years. |
have been working for the Planning Board for over 20 years. 1 have never had any issues with him and |
respect him.

D. Ross: Has there been anything that changed that would make you feel differently.

J. Duffy: No, nothing has changed.

R. Duhaime: After the Aug. 29 letter from Dr. Shankle, he showed that there was concern stating he did
not think is was appropriate. Why did you not include him in the material just fo keep him informed?

J. Duffy: This is something | have done every year, for 20 years, whenever | put together proposed zoning
changes for the Planning Board. It didn't occur to me there was anything wrong.

R. Duhaime: When | was reading the Planning Board minutes, Dean was at the meeting and you knew
he was interesied.

J. Duffy: Dr. Shankle used to be a member of the Planning Board and we would invite him to things but
now that he is not on the Board | normally don't invite him to meetings. | meet with people all the time and
don't include him unless it is requested that he attend or he wants to.
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J. Levesque: When you had the 2™ meeting, and it was brought up by Leo Lessard to invite Dr. Shankle,
I would think you would want him to know what was gomg on. Why did you not go out of your way to
make sure he understood you were going to have that 2™ meeting?

J. Duffy: 1 didn't know he was upset with i because of the way he worded his email and we never had
any verbal discussion on this.

J. Levesque: If my boss tells me something is inappropriate | think | would follow it up. | am having a hard
time understanding why you did not.

J. Duffy: It was the way he worded it, “I'm not sure if this is appropriate.” It didn't say he felt it was not
appropriate. There was no verbal discussion. It was just that one line that | had to go by.

S. Omr: When you got this email from Dr. Shankle saying he was not sure it was appropriate, did you look
at the Policy?

J. Dufiy: | read the Right-to-Know law, referenced the section abouf Advisory Commitiee, and came to
the conclusion that there was no reason to be concerned because we were not breaking any laws. On
hindsight, | think that Dr. Shankle thought we should be doing something in the public eye because
eventually this will become a public issue. However, if you read through, the Local Government Center
(LGC) explains the changes on the new Right-to-Know law. It says that working documents of staff are
just that, and you don't want those public because the public might become concerned thinking that one
day they may become official. It was staff trying to be helpful. That's all. We had no ideas of leading the
town or Committee any certain way.

J. Sullivan: You said that working staff documents do not apply. Is a member of the Planning Board, in
your mind, consitlered part of the stafi?

J. Duffy: No, but he is not a quorum of the Board either.

T. Lizotte: On p22 of Attorney Buckley's packet, in the 1% paragraph of Dr. Shankle's initial letter, he
emphasizes that he was under the impression that the meeting was for staff and did not realize a member
of the Planning Board would be there. He then asser{s he wasn't sure it was appropriate and it shouid be
disclosed at the meeting. Taking into consideration 91A's Preamble regarding the openness and conduct
of public business, you believed, when you read this, that he wasn't concerned a Planning Board member
was part of it and a 2™ meeting would be ok?

J. Duffy: 1 didn't know what his concern was. | believed he must think we are a Committee because Mr.
Marshall was there, but | knew that wasn't the fact. | wrote back frying to explain what happened in the
Planning Board meeting and | really thought | was all set.

T. Lizotte: You had indicated that it was a 2 hr. meeting, edits had taken place and Miss Cronin
forwarded an email in the sense of saying Sign Committee edits. She also states that in a subsequent

meeting, Mr. Marshall came to make sure the edits were correct. Was Mr. Marshall making the decision
on those Arlicles?

J. Duffy: No. Carelyn had left out a few things about the size we were including in the documents and he
just caught what she had left out.

T. Lizotte: Who made the decisions to make the changes on the 1% ediis?

J. Duffy: Carolyn took notes as we went along and she did the edits. There was no instruction.

D. Winterton: On the letter that Councilor Lizzotte just referred to, was Mr. Walsh copied on that?
J. Duffy: | think Carolyn left him off because he wasn't there, but | sent it to him myself afterwards.

S. Orr: An email from Dean implies that he walked into the meeting and then walked out. Did he say
anything to anybody at that time?
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J. Duffy: No. He looked around and then left. There was no interaction.
J. Sullivan: That concludes our questions. Are there any more witnesses?

Attorney Douglas: No.

D. Shankle: What | am going to go through is how | saw what | saw up until the 20™. When 1 made my
decision, | had everything up to Exhibit 16 on p73. The Sign Committee meeting posted on the 23"
happened prior to that. Then they got the letter, the 23" happened and everything changed. Exhibit 1 is a
letter that the Council did. The email went to everybody and the reason you wrote this letter was because
of actions that were taken by the Planning Board. An advisory committee is a group of people getting
together to do work that is going to be brought back to the public. One of the issues that kept coming up
was whether an advisory committee can have a combination of staff members and Planning Board
members. According to the LGC, a Committee can be made up of both staff and Board members. When
looking at Exhibit 2, the Aug. 5 meeting, my mindset was stili Sign Regulation sub-committee. On p13, T.
Walsh, L eo Lessard and Dick Marshalt stated they would be willing to sit on the Sign Committee. Two of
those people are Planning Board members and one is staff and nobody disagreed. | want you to note on
Exhibit 3, the meeting of Aug. 19, J. Duffy, said that “at your last meeting you agreed to have a formation
of the Sign Committee. The people who have volunteered are T. Walsh, Leo Lessard, Carolyn Cronin,
Dick Marshall and myself." You will see those names over and over again when talking about the non-
existent Sign Committee. That is the Sign Committee that everybody, from that moment on, considered
the Slgn Committee or a sub-committee. Their meeting time and what would be discussed was talked
about in the 3" paragraph from the bottom. The thing that Is important about that sentence is that Dick
Marshall saw this sub-committee as something that would save the Sign Committee time. In other words,
he was expecting them to do work that, otherwise, they would have had to do in public. | understand why
they were trying to save people time but, if you are going to do that, you need to admit that you are doing
work that was going to be done by the Sign Committee. One of the things said was they needed to do this
pre-work because the EDC would not be familiar enough with the sign ordinance to go through it in the
same detail they would. One of the things the Sign Committee should have been planning on doing is
educating the people in town, including the members of the EDC, any business that came in or anyone
interested from the public about what the ordinance meant and what it was trying to do. Exhibit 4
mentions a meeting of the Sign Committee on Aug. 28 with JoAnn Duffy inviting EDC Board members to
attend. If the EDC Board members were there they would have no reason to believe that wasn't a posted
meeting of the Sign Committee. It is what they were told and it is what | had in front of me when | needed
to make my decision. Exhibit 5, p20 says it is a Sign Committee organizational meeting. The meeting
organizer was JoAnn Duffy and the same names Leo Lessard, Dick Marshall, Carolyn Cronin and Tom
Walsh, that were mentioned at the Aug. 19 meeting were mentioned again. Moving to the bottom of
Exhlblt 6, p22, | will answer the question | have been asked about why | said | was not sure it was
appropriate. | had not been at the meeting on the 19" so I did not know, at this point, that a Committes
had been assigned by the Planning Board. This was just a question in my mind if it was appropriate,
considering all of the interest in the community, to start this process behind closed doors. The other
question | was asked was why | did not go and talk to JoAnn. Each morning, between 8 and 9 am [ go in
to most offices and she was not in the office each time | went in to talk to her. Once 9 am comes | get
swamped with work. JoAnn said she was concerned that | might think it was a Sign Committee. The way
she fried to relay that concern is to tell me, on p22, that the Commitiee was faormed as a sub-commitiee of
the Planning Board. That is why | thought it was. [ had no reason to think this was not either 2 Committee
or sub-committee and she said it was done by consensus of the Planning Board. Regarding p24, | would
have thought if there was going to be a 2™ meeting, | would have heard about it. Exhibit 8, p26. When |
walked in to talk to her, around 10 am, there was a meeting going on. | turned around and walked out,
which | usually do, so as not to interrupt. It did not occur to me that it might be their 2" meeting until 1 got
back downstairs. From my perspective, it would have been inappropriate to go back up and confront my
staff in front of an outsider. Exhibit 9 makes reference to awareness of the Planning Board, another
meeting on Sept. 23, and that all members would be invited. At that time, my understanding was evolving
and | was gathering information. That is why | didn't do anything right away and took my time to think
about it. My concern is in the 2™ paragraph of Exhibit 10, Letter 33, regarding staff working behind the
scenes. One of the concerns raised was why Leo Lessard got 6 months and JoAnn got 1 year. It was
important to me that Leo understood that he did something wrong and he wanted to do the right thing. In
my letter, Exhibit 11, 4 paragraphs from the bottorn, | mentioned that | would like him to tell me why he
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chose to act as he did, what he sees as his role as part of my Administration, and his part in what was
going on before | decided on my level of discipline. We have a lot going on and | need to know that the
department heads are on the same page. | felt Leo was responsive to this. Other differences are that
JoAnn involved brand new empioyees of her department in this knowing that | was concerned, she hosted
it, and she has been here for 20 years. Lec has been here 2 years. P14 is the one that sent out the red-
lined draft of the sign ordinance. As Carolyn pointed out, in the end of the 1% paragraph, this is a
combination of her research as well as the same people from the beginning. They clearly went through
this ordinance line by line deciding what to do. [ think an exercise like with a 40 year member of the
Planning Board, that was not done in public, was a shame. After things coming up over a 2-3 week period
| went to the Sept. 16th meeting to try to figure out what was really going on. This meeting is referenced
on p69. Whether this was the Sign Committee or an Advisory Committee on behalf of the Planning Board,
it falls under the Right-to-Know law. If a Committes, as a whole, can tell people to get together and then
bring everything back, everything could be done out of the public view using this loophole. if they have
been doing this with zoning ordinance changes every year we need to talk about that. It is not an issue to
have Planning Board members dropping in and talking to staff. The issue is that a group of people were
assigned by the Planning Board to go off and do this work. That is a huge difference. It could be
considered an ethical problem, for instance, under the ICMA Code of Ethics, if | individually worked with
Councilors on a proposal if the idea was to circumvent the rest of the Council. This particular case is not
an ethical issue. They were assigned by the Planning Board to do this work by consensus. They left that
with the idea that they would hold another meeting on Sept. 23“. In the middie of p70, Dick Marshall said
that it was not part of the public committee. It was so they have something consolidated in front of them
when they waik in. If staff would have done this it would have be fine. That is what we are paid for. The
Right-to-Know law is clear. Staff work product, until it gets to the Board, is not public. If you mix in
anybody other than staff you no longer have that exemption. | asked if the Planning Board instructed them
fo do this. | mentioned | did not see a vote in the minutes. Dick Marshall corrected me and told me the
Planning Board took a consensus so that was verified for me. Another member said that yes they were
suppased to get together. They were doing it at the behest of the Planning Board, going to the Sign
Committee and what was going to the Sign Committee was going to come back to the Planning Board.
This was ultimately an advisory committee. A group of people sent out by the Planning Board fo do work
on their behalf and bring that work back. In my opinion that is an advisory committee. On p71, | explain
that | called the Municipal Association and what their response was. At the bottom Representative Walsh
states that they had set up a Committee, gave them a charge, the charge could have been clearer, some
mistakes had been made and he wanted to straighten it out. P72, 3" paragraph down, references a
request for a motion if a Sign Committee meeting was going to be held on Sept. 23. What normally is
done is the Board decides who will be appointed or the Board suggests that a mesting be held that
people could be invited to talk about it. [t would be a meeting of the Planning Board, or the Council or
something like that. The meeting of Sept. 23, was posted as a Sign Committee meeting and has minutes.
Who is going to approve those minutes if there was no Sign Committee? When the consensus was taken
the volunteers were again the same people as were mentioned before, who agreed to serve on this
Committee and there was going to be some reaching out to others. In italics and bolded below on the
page, Dick Marshall moved that a Committee meeting of the Sign Committee be held on Sept. 23 at 5:30,
seconded by Tom Walsh. | cannct prove this but isn't it odd that the two people that moved and seconded
were part of the original Committee. The motion carried unanimously and there was no other Committee
mentioned or formed at that point. Exhibit 16 on Sept. 12, mentions that a Sign Committee agenda was
posted and the business was going to talk about the establishment of the Committee. 1 think they tried to
make the argument that they were establishing the Committee by showing up, but clearly that is not what
they meant. They were going to talk about why the Committee was established, what they were supposed
to be doing, what their charge was, but they clearly already had a Committee in place that they were
going to do that with. Otherwise you would have this situation where it is suggesting they are creating
themselves which is not what they were trying to do. It was the Planning Board estabiishing the Sign
Committee. Once the 20™ hit everything got strange. All of sudden the Sign Committee minutes on the
23" say that Sign Committee is supposed to be established, 2 of the 3 Committee meetings had to be
canceled because they were not posted correctly. P79 is why | go back to the alternate realities. In the
middle, D. Marshall says, there was no Sign Committee until this action was taken by the Planning Board
until is was just appointed. D. Rogers states that there was no Sign Committee until it was just appointed
and there has been no business conducted by this Committee. Once again even if they think that is true,
up unfil | sent that letter on the 20™ alf | heard from everyone involved that this was a Committes
assignment by the Planning Board to do this work. It was called the Sign Commitiee over and over again
on everything and all of a sudden it changed.
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Attorney Douglas: You said in your testimony just now that all it took for you was a call to the LGC to
determine that what JoAnn was doing was wrong. Am | stating your testimony correctly?

D. Shankle: No. Could you please be more specific.

Attorney Douglas: | believe you said all it tock was a call to the LGC for me to determine that the meeting
she held on Aug. 28 was wrong.

D. Shankle: Yes.
Attorney Douglas: So, in other words, you didn't know it was wrong?

Shankie: | was double checking because, obviously, when dealing with something like this | want to
make sure | am right. That is why you make calls and double check.

Attorney Douglas: Should the Council then oppose upon you a training that would take place every
workday, M-F beginning at 8:15 and lasting until at least 9 in the Town Hall, which would comprise of
direct training, reading books, taking classes on-line, developing training for others, working on special
projects and anything else that may be deemed appropriate?

J. Sullivan: | have been advised the question you are asking is out of the scope of this hearing.

Attorney Douglas: Would it be appropriate for you to be disciplined for your lack of knowledge of the
Right-to-Know law?

J. Sullivan: Again same balipark as the previous quesfion.

Attorney Douglas: You testified the reason you took the actions against JoAnn is that you felt that staff
not appear to be working behind the scenes to craft an ordinance out of public view. Is that why you

disciplined JoAnn, because you felt it was important that staff not appear to be working behind the
scenes?

D. Shankle: | do not believe | said that was the only reason.

Attorney Douglas: You opened the hearing with the assertion that you were concerned that JoAnn was
tasked to work on the sign ordinance on behalf on individual Planning Board members,

D. Shankle: [ think you are incorrect. | will reread my opening statement.

Attorney Douglas: So you were truly concerned about JoAnn working on behalf of individual Planning
Board members?

D. Shankle: That is not what | said. | said tasked by the Planning Board. Nothing to do with individual
members.

Attorney Douglas: The meeting with JoAnn on Sept. 9. Did you or did you not say Dick is not considered
to be business friendly?

D. Shankle: [ don't remember saying that, but | may have said that, because the business community has
come fo me and told me they felt that Dick Marshall has been a lot of the problem, especially when it
came to signs. | may have said that in the context of my job as being responsible for economic
development, reporting to the people here and the fact that the Committee that was put together had
somebody on it that | knew the business community would have concerns with,

Attorney Douglas: So you were actually concerned about promoting the interest of the business
community.

D. Shankle: That is part of my job.
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Attorney Douglas: You are not concerned about transparency and public participation?

D. Shankie: Of course | am. | already said that.

Attornay Douglas: Are you politically motivated?

D. Shankle: No. Politically motivated to do what?

Attorney Douglas: To promote the interest of the business community.

D. Shankle: No. The Town Council has given me direction to promote the interest of the business
community. That is my job. From the first time they interviewed me they talked about economic

development. Are you saying [ shouldn't do that?

Attorney Douglas: | am saying the purpose of the Right-to-Know law is to make sure all aspects of the
community are represented. Do you disagree?

D. Shankie: Why would | disagree? That is a common sense statement.

J. Sullivan: We need to get to the facts. | would like to ask both parties to ask the questions and answer
as quickly as possible.

Attorney Douglas: | would like to go through the chronology beginning from when you learned of the Aug.
28 meeting. Exhibit p97. You sent an email to JoAnn reading: ‘I was under the impression that the
meeting the other morning was for staff and did not realize that a member of the Planning Board would be
there. | am not sure that was appropriate and it should be disclosed at your first meeting with the
Committee.” Did you call the LGC after this email to determine whether or not is was approptiate to have
the meeting?

D. Shankle: At some point after, but not right after. At this point, | did not know the Planning Board had
told them to meet.

Attomey Douglas: When did you tell JoAnn what the LGC told you? Did you tell her conclusively that it
was inappropriate? You never did. Did you?

D. Shankle: Why would you say that?
Attorney Douglas: After that email, JoAnn did respond to you? Right?
D. Shankle: Yes.

Attomey Dougias: She did respond to your concern about the potential for inappropriateness. Is that not
true?

D. Shankle: If you consider what's on there the response, than yes.

Attorney Douglas: Did she explain to you what she was doing with that meeting?

D. Shankle: She did.

Attorney Douglas: You said that you tried to talk to her about that?

D. Shankle: 1 said there were several times through this process that | stopped up to that office.

Attorney Douglas: Could you not have sent an email?
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D. Shankle: | could have done a lot of things. | like to do things one-on-one especially if there seems to
be some confusion or misunderstanding. JoAnn made the point earlier that email is not the best way to
communicate.

Attorney Douglas: If it was really important to you wouldn't you have made sure that you emailed her the
LGC's response?

D. Shankle: 1 don't know when | got the LGC's response. | did not know there was going to be another
meeting.

Attorney Douglas: Are you attempting to discipline JoAnn far something that you did not understand?

D. Shankle: No.

Attorney Douglas: After you walked in on the 2™ meeting, you wrote Exhibit p100 to JoAnn that says: “|
told both of you that | thought it was inappropriate. Neither one of you are to do anything more on this nor
are you to provide any further staff support to the Sign Committee until and uniess | give you written
permission to do so. When are each of you free fomorrow?" Did | read that correctly?

D. Shankle: Yes. | think so.

Attorney Douglas: Did JoAnn respond to you? Did she try to explain herself?

D. Shankle: I don't see a response to that.

Attorney Douglas: Was her response instead fo the one you sent on p99 stating, “I'm hoping the meeting |
just walked in on was not another meeting regarding the sign ordinance when | have expressed to both of
you | did not think it was appropriate to have meeting that did not include only staff.” Did she respond to
this?

D. Shankle: The one at the bottom of p100? Yes. | guess that is the response. That is where she
explained to me it was a Committee set up by the Planning Board.

Attorney Douglas: After she explained herself you sent a letter to her?

D. Shankle: Yes.

Attorney Douglas: In that letter, you were primarily concerned about her insubordination?
D. Shankle: Not primarily, but it was an issue,

Attorney Douglas: You talked about dismissal in terms of her insubordination not in terms of violation of
the Right-to-Know law. Is that a fair statement?

D. Shankle: Yes.
Attorney Douglas: You required that she explain to you how she was not insubordinate?

D. Shankle: Ok.

Attorney Douglas: Referencing p106, she wrote a letter back to you on Sept. 6 explaining why she met
with a Planning Board member regarding the sign ordinance and apologizing, stating that this was in no
way an intentional act of insubordination on her part. What flaw is represented by JoAnn's response as an
empioyee that will be corrected by the training you would like her to do?

D. Shankle: From that letter or the situation as a whole?

Attorney Douglas: Why do you feel that disciplinary action remedies JoAnn's insubordination in light of
that letter?
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D. Shankle: That is like apples and oranges. My letter from the 20" has nothing to do with the letter you
just referenced. Just looking at that 1 letter makes no sense.

Attorney Douglas: From the apologefic tone of that letter and from the explanation about the
misunderstanding, do you think a program lasting a year and threatening discharge should she be late
once, having no discernible topical content, is appropriate?

D. Shankle: So you are asking me about the appropriateness. You are making mc:orrect statements. | did
not say she would be fired for missing once. At the bottom of my letter of the 20™, | said, being late for or
failing to attend any of these training sessions would resuit in further dlsc:!pime up to and including
dismissal. It does not say the first time she misses something or is 5 minutes late she is going fo be
dismissed. If you go through my letter, it talks about a number of management, ethical and legal issues.
We are talking about approximately the same amount of time that somebody would put in if they were
taking a 1 semester course in management. | have taught a lot of those courses all over the world and |
know enough that if | am not absolutely sure about the law | am going to call.

Aftorney Douglas: No further questions,

J. Sullivan: At this point the Town's Administrator's legal counsel will do a redirect.
Attorney Buckley: | have no questions.

J. Sullivan: The Council can now ask questions.

N. Comai: What are JoAnn's hours?

D. Shankle: We have been looking at that. The personnel policy says that the office hours are 8-4:30.
This came up at a training session Donna went to, and cne of the things she learned, in the general
sense, was salaried employees drift in and leave whenever they want. What was recommended at the
training was to put the hours of work in people's individual job descriptions. We have not done that here
yet, it but we may in the future. We expect salaried people to do their job and be here when they need to
be here, but the federal law gives then some latitude, unless we have that covered somehow.

R. Duhaime: Do you attend all of the EDC meetings?
D. Shankie: | try to attend as many as | can.
R. Duhaime: On p13 it says the staff can volunteer. That isn't really true because staff is getting paid?

D. Shankle: That is one of the things | have been working on since | have gotten here. 1 got Leo and
myself off the Planning Board because | don't feel it was right we were on it. What happens when staff
sits on commitiees is that the real volunteers expect that the staff are going to be doing all of the work.
Committees assigh work to staff and that is not what is supposed to happen. | did it first to set the
example.

J. Sullivan: | do have a piece of information that might help answer Counselor Comai's inquiry. In the
exhibits submitied by Attorney Douglas in p.40 there is a a copy of JoAnn Duffy's job description and

there is a statement about her hours on the last page p42. This was an exhibit Miss Duffy offered. it says
her hours are 8am-4.30pm.

S. Orr: You believe strongly that the process that was followed was illegal. Early on you suspected it
was illegal. As the person respensible for running the Town's offices and responsible for the staff, do you
feel you did everything in your power at that time to identify what you suspected to be an illegal meeting
and to prevent anything further from happening?

D. Shankle: | admit | should have seen earlier that was illegal, but 1 did not see certain things in the
beginning. A lot of the things are much clearer to me now. When they really got clear was between their
meeting on Sept. 9 and when | finished my letter on the 20™. Donna and | were gathering all of the
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information we could so | would not make a bad decision. The first time | said it may have been
inappropriate, | did not know they had even appointed a Committee at that point. Later on she said it and
1t should have clicked. | did not pick up on it quick enough. Until | really sat down, after the meeting on the
9™ and | questioned them about if they really did this, and Dick Marshall said, yes by consensus. That is
when it started to click. If | had known sooner | certainly would have jumped in. | was surprised they had a
2" meeting after | told them both | thought it may be inappropriate. If they didn't agree with me they
should have come to me and asked why | thought that. | understand what you are saying and wish |
caught it sooner.

S. O There is an expectation being set for a department head to know something she believes she
knew and, as it turned out, may not have know. In that 2™ meet[ng you said you walked in and saw all of
them in there You suspected that it might have been a 2™ meeting. You went back down to your office
and wrote that email:

D. Shankle: | did not say it in that order. It did not occur to me until | went downstairs that is might be a
2" meeting.

S. O When you went back down to your office and realized that might be a 2™ meeting, knowing how
important it is to not have an illegal meeting, and you are in that building and you suspect that it might be,
did you ever rethink your decision to not go back up, pult JoAnn out, and stop it in the process so that it
didn't continue instead of wondering.

D. Shankle: At that point | wasn't wondering. 1 didn't think they should be having the meeting | don't think
it really clicked in at that point that they weren't appointed by the Board. 1 know she told me their idea but 1
guess | did not pay close enough attention. Usually if the staff does something wrong | let them know.
With this | could have done a better job but she is a 20 year employee, she runs Boards and Committees
all the time and | didn't focus on it enough.

S. Orr: Someone can come to this Council or any Board and say they would like to volunteer for a
position. When new Councilors come and say they would like to run for this office we are putting our hat
in the ring to be in that position. At that point they are still just volunteers who would agree to take that
position. Is it not true that until someone is officially appointed by the Board they are volunteering for,
they are not technically Board members?

D. Shankle: Except that even you folks do things by consensus. | tried to tell the Planning Board, no you
didn't do this and Dick Marshall corrected me and said yes we did do this by consensus.

S. O When you say, “do this,” what do you mean?
D. Shankle: | mean form the Committee.

S. Orr: What is the difference between forming a Committee and then appointing members to that
Committee. Is it 1 or 2 steps? My question is whether it was an official Committee that was holding a
meeting outside of the public realm. | am trying to break it down. When do we determine when it is an
official Committee meeting, when we appoint members to that Committee and the process that goes in?
Was that gray in this case or was it clear?

D. Shankle: From the very beginning JoAnn laid out a number of people who volunteered for that
Committee. Every meeting after that those are the peocple they invited to the Committee meetings and

they called them Committee meetings. If you go to p70 that is where Dick Marshall talks about the
consensus and Board instruction.

S. Orr: Your response to that was 1 think there is an ethical issue even if there is not a legal issue.

D. Shankle: That's right and why | was trying to find out if there was instruction and | was told by Dick
Marshall there was a consensus and instruction.

8. Orr: At that point, it looks like on Oct. 7 members were officially appointed to this Committee as
discussed prior.
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D. Shankle: Yes. That is the alternate reality after my letter went out.

S. O | don't see minutes that say there was an official appointment of anybody to that Committee. Am |
missing where it mentions that people have been officially appointed.

D. Winterton: Mr. Chairman, | request that we have consultation with the Council as a hon-meeting?

J. Sullivan: We are able to go into consultation with our Legal Counsel or we can do a brief recess. We
can ask everyone to leave and then go into legal consultation if we need to for a few minutes.

J. Sullivan moved for a request to go into a 5 minute break at 9:08pm as well as have a Town
Council consultation with their Legal Counsel. Seconded by S. Orr. Motion carried unanimously.

Recording Clerk — Katie Rosengren

Return From Break 9:27 pm

S. Orr: What was the date of the [etter that you sent to both Jo Ann and Leo?

Dr. Shankle: September 5™

S. Orr: Did you have any conversations with them to clarify your understanding of what was going on?

Dr. Shankle: | sent the email to Jo Ann which could have been stronger. 1 did talk to Leo because he
stopped in my office maybe right after the meeting and he clearly understood.

S. Orr: Could you see that maybe it wasn’t made as clear to Jo Ann as it could have been at that time?

Dr. Shankle: | won't deny that, however, in the stream of things it was irrelevant because the letter on 9/5
wasn't the disciplinary letter. She sent me back a letter saying that she didn’t clearly understand it and
that informed my choice to give her training. So | did understand that | could have been clearer otherwise
I would have taken further action. | took time gathering information and factored that into the final
disciplinary action.

R. Duhaime: In your letter that you sent her dated the 5" you mention that you don't think she answered
that directly, do you feel she did?

Dr. Shankle: | would have expected a more in depth answer. Leo's letter was a page and a half and hers
was two paragraphs.

T. Lizotte: Regarding the letter that was sent as a result of the Town Council deaiing with RSA 91-A can
you please explain why you highlighted the specific sections on page 5?

Dr. Shankie: There were two possibilities and both of them were a problem. At the bottom, 91-A:1-a VI (d)
it says that those are definitions of a public body. At the top 91-A:1-a | it discusses an advisory
committee. So that's the theory of why they didn’t comply with RSA 91-A.

T. Lizotte: You started gathering this information up to the 20™. in your opinion based on what you
gathered, do you believe it was an advisory committee?

Dr. Shankle: Yes. | do.

T. Lizotte: Regarding the September 30th letter about disciplinary action can you please summarize the
background for reasons for disciplinary action? Please say what you feel is most important.

Dr. Shankle: | think all of it's important, one of the things that we're discussing here is whether the
requirement for the training is related to the specific issue at hand and | guess that's why | put these
things in here to explain why it's important. You heard her say tonight that she still thinks that it's
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appropriate. She's been here a long time, so to me the idea of giving training was a positive thing. | just
finished four courses at Rutgers on performance measurement. I'm a lifelong learner it’s hard for me to
see that as punishment. | think that my decision was reasonable and | think that the disciplinary action
was appropriate.

D. Ross motioned to extend the meeting at 9:30pm for ¥ hour to 10:00pm. T, Lizotte seconded.

Vote unanimously in favor.

T. Lizotie: Did you say that Leo Lessard came down to you?

Dr. Shankle: Mr. Lessard came down and | saw him after the first meeting but before the 2™ mesting.
T. Lizotte: Was he responding to the letter that you sent?

Dr. Shankle: No

D. Winterton: In your letter on 9/22 you mention her discipline could include up to and including dismissal.
Is that common language that you use or is that what you told her?

Dr. Shankle: Yes if's common language.

R. Duhaime: Are there times available for Jo Ann to pop in or staff meetings where she can chat with
you?

Dr. Shankle: We always have a staff meeting eight days before a council meeting. We go over the draft
agenda and make sure people are doing their staff reports and then we go around and let every
department head share what people may need to know. That is another time where pecple could talk to
me after the meeting.

R. Duhaime: So there are more opportunities to meet with you than just in the morning?

Dr. Shankle: Yes

D. Winterton: Was there ever or has there ever been a management policy contemplated where all emails
are cc'd to their supervisor?

Dr. Shankle: No

J. Sullivan: That concludes our questions for the Administrator. At this point the legal counsel can make a
closing statement,

Atty. Buckley: Dr. Shankle is going to make a closing statement on his behalf
J. Sullivan: We are going to let the Mr. Marshall letter into evidence but note that he could not attend.

Dr. Shankle: As we've seen in January of this year the Council sent out a letter to boards and committees
sharing the most relevant part of RSA 91-A. Jo Ann and members of the Planning Board at the time
received the most current copies. On 8/19 the Planning Board by consensus authorized a group of people
of both board members and staff as a subcommittee to do work that the Sign Committee would also be
doing. By all accounts until the alternate reality kicked in on 9/20 they were doing work on changes to the
sign ordinance out of the public eye. | believe then and | believe now that Jo Ann was part of a smalt
group of people tasked by the Planning Board to work on the sign ordinance on their behalf. | further
believe that they were a public body as envisioned in RSA 91-A and that as a department head she
should have understood this and complied with the law. Jo Ann carelessly included new employees in this
meeting and did not inform the Planning Board that they should be concerned about these meetings. |
have taught many courses on leadership and management and state and local government and to be
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honest | think that training that is the equivalent of one course is not enough but it is a good start. | hope
you will support me

Alty. Douglas: The Right to Know law is complicated. We've had three attorneys in this room discussing i,
we've talked about consulting with the LGC and Municipal Association. There is certainly room for
intelligent people to disagree about the Right to Know law. Under RSA 91-A you are committing an illegal
act when you hold a secret meeting that is not posted to the public which does apply to advisory groups.
The group of Jo Ann, Leo, Carolyn, Dick and Matt was not an advisory committee. These people were all
meeting to advise the subcommitiee not the appointing authority. Jo Ann’s job description requires her to
be an advisor and give technical assistance. Uitimately your task tonight is to decide whether or not the
discipline as proposed by Dr. Shankle is appropriate for what Jo Ann did. After the testimony tonight we
canh come away with the idea that there is much grey are surrounding 91-A. Dr. Shankle himself admitted
that when he sent that initial email he did not understand how inappropriate it was. He had to call the LGC
and doesn’t even remember when. In light of that is it appropriate for Jo Ann fo perform an ambiguous
training program every day for a year when there are certainly other things that Jo Ann could be attending
to for the town?

T. Lizotte motioned to close the evidentiary hearing at 9:45pm. Seconded by J. Levesque.
Vote unanimously in favor.
J. Sullivan: We need to schedule a public deliberative session within 30 days.
Atty. Buckley: [ have a legal memorandum to submit.
J. Sullivan: We will allow it.
Atty. Douglas: Can | have 10 days to submit one as well?
Atty. Tanguay: You were notified of this opportunity in the letter that you received.
Atty. Douglas: | did not notice that.
J. Sullivan: Seeing that we can't allow it.
J. Sullivan motioned to hold the deliberative session at the 11/13/13 meeting at 5:00pm. Seconded
by R. Duhaime.
Vote unanimously in favor.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Public of 10/09/2013
T. Lizotte motioned to approve public minutes of 10/09/13 with edits. Seconded by S. Orr.
D. Winterton: On page 14 | said the Planning Board Sign Committee did not meet because the
requirement to be posted was not met, and it wasn’t there was confusion about posting for the Economic
Development Committee so my statement that they did not meet because it was required to be posted

was nhot accurate.

J. Sullivan: Page 7 during the scheduled appointments with Mr. Marple | would like it to reflect the
statement made by Councitor Duhaime regarding respect.

S. Orr: On the top of page 12 the last sentence in my comment is supposed to be “not everyone can be a
mentor”.

Vote unanimously in favor.

b. Non-public of 10/09/2013
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J. Levesque motioned to approve non-public minutes of 10/09/13. Seconded by T. Lizotte.

Vote unanimously in favor.

OLD BUSINESS
S. Orr motioned to reconsider the Trick-or-Treat time for Hooksett. Seconded by T. Lizotte.
Vote unanimously in favor.

D. Ross motioned to rescind the motion made at the previous meeting (10/09/13) to change the
Trick-or-Treat time from 6:00pm-8:00pm to 7:00pm — 9:00pm. Seconded by S. Orr.

D. Ross: | believe the motion was out of order to begin with because | don't believe we have the authority
to tell people what io do and when to do it on their holidays.

S. Orr: We had a quick discussion based on requests that Councilor Ross had received and since then
I've received a lot of comments from the public saying that they did not like the change, so as a
representative of the public 1 would like to go with their opinion.

J. Suliivan: | know we received a ot of comments as well as the Administration Office.

Vote unanimously in favor,

Dr. Shankle: By rescinding the last vote you are saying the Trick-or-Treat time is 6-8pm.

J. Sultivan: Who has the right to declare?

Dr. Shankle: Due to a Council vote years ago, if you don’t do anything it's going to keep being 6-8pm.

J. Levesque: We're not setting Trick-or-Treat we're providing exira police protection from 6-8, people can
go wheneaver they want.

At 10:00pm D. Ross motioned to extend the meeting five minutes. Seconded by T. Lizotte.
Vote unanimously in favor

N. Comai: | cannot make the majority of Parks and Rec. Advisory Board meetings. | have asked councilor
Jennings to take that over and 1 ask the Council to remove me and ask Adam Jennings to replace me.

D. Ross motioned to replace Councilor Comai with Councilor Jennings on the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board. Seconded by T. Lizotte.

Vote unanimously in favor

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

There’s a groundbreaking for the Hooksett Welcome Center tomorrow at 10:30am at the northbound
Hooksett Welcome Center.

NEW BUSINESS
a. 13-105 Tax Rate discussion
Christine Soucie, Finance Director

C Soucie: Because of the revaluation of the community we don’t have the final numbers but we're getting
down to the wire where we need to have a decision to set a tax rate and send tax bills. There is no
deadline but we would like to have it before your next meeting. Would you consider asking the Town
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Administrator to apply a fund balance to keep the median single family household level, but not drop the
unassigned fund balance below 6%7?

J. Sullivan: So what is the median single family household level?
C. Soucie: Last year was $257,000 and we're thinking based on the estimates that will be lower this year

s0 we're thinking $228,000.

T. Lizotte motioned for the Town Administrator to If necessary apply a fund balance to keep the
median single family household level, but not drop the unassigned fund balance below 6%.
Seconded by 8. Orr.

N. Comaii So $733,315 is whaf you'll have fo work with not including the school?

C. Soucie: If you want to use a number you can but you should leave out the percentage.
T. Lizotte: I'm comfortable with using 6%.

C. Soucie: Last year we applied zero and in the years before that applied up to a miilion.

T. Lizotte: I'm ok with the percentage because we're fagging it to the median level of the home so we
might not use that. 6% is one factor, the other is the value of the home.

D. Winterton: This is an algebraic exercise.
C. Soucie: Right and we ¢an do that when we're sitting down with DRA.

S. Orr: It was suggested if we wanted we could use a number buf the problem is we could set the
percentage at the end so we need to stick with the percentage in order to keep it below 6%.

C. Soucie: Yes

N. Comai: 1 agree about the 6% but it could cost us $733,315 and our policy is we could go 5% so there's
too many moving parts for me, so | would assume the moment you know what the school will be
readdress it with us. It's too much money.

Dr. Shankle: The only way to readdress it would be to set a special mesting.

N. Comai: Ok,

D. Ross: We need to protect the town as a whole so | think we should cali a special meeting if we need
to, our target it 8%.

Roll Call

J. Levesque — Yes
T. Lizotie — Yes

8. Orr — Yes

A. Jennings — Yes
N. Comai—No

R. Duhaime — Yes
D. Winterton — No
D. Ross — No

J. Sullivan — No

Vote 5-4 passes

T. Lizotte motioned to extend the meeting at 10:15pm for § minutes. Seconded by R. Duhaime.
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Vote unanimously in favor
b. 13-108 Fire-Personal Protective Equipment Bid Acceptance

Dr. Shankle nofified the Council that Fire Chief Williams would like to table this item to the
next meeting on 111313

¢.  13-109 Sander replacement
Leo Lessard, Director of Public Works

L. Lessard: The sander is broken and in need of replacement.
J. Levesque motioned that Council approves the purchase of the sander from H.P. Fairfield LLC
for $18,391.0 and to use $2,955.32 from the fleet maintenance line to purchase the sander with the
insurance money. Seconded by 8. Orr.
D. Ross: How old was the sander that was destroyed in the accident?
L. Lessard: At least from 1997, its life was over.
J. Levesque: Can you salvage the parts from the old one?
L. Lessard: Yes, we will.
Roll Call
D. Ross - Yes
J. Levesque — Yes
T. Lizofte — Yes
S. Orr —Yes
A. Jennings — Yes
N. Comai - Yes
R. Duhaime — Yes
D. Winterton — Yes
J. Sullivan - Yes
Vote unanimously in favor
d. 13-110 Town newsletter insert with tax bill

Dr. Shankie: Under RSA 76:11 we can include additional information with the tax bill by majority vote of
the governing body.

N. Comai: One could argue the recycling piece is policy at the moment.
T. Lizotte: [ wouldn’t have a problem with that it's stating an obvious thing.
Dr. Shankle: In addition to in the tax bill this would also go online.

D. Ross motioned to include the proposed newsletter in the fax bill in black and white. Seconded
by S. Orr.

All voted in favor except N. Comai who opposed

J. Sullivan motioned to adjourn at 10:22pm. Seconded by D. Ross.
Vote unanimously in favor

Respectfully submitted,
Recording Clerk — Katie Rosengren & Recording Clerk — AnnMarie White
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SNHU Operation Center AGENDA NG. [3 2.

November 13 2013 BATE:_I( _LS:%.L?WW

Background:

September 7" of 2011 the Market Basket on West River Road was completed
and the landscaping bond was put in place fro 24 months per planning board
regulations. The bond is in the amount of $112,305. This amount was due to be
released on September 7 2013. The department has inspected the site which is
in compliance.

iIssue:

| would like the Town Council to release this landscaping bond in the amount of
$112,305.00 to Market Basket

Discussion:

After completing a site walk and investigation, the landscaping is in satisfactory
condition and | have not encountered any problems. The bond is two months
over due at this point.

Fiscal Impact:

None

Recommendation:

| recommend that the Town Council approve the release of the landscaping
Surety Bond in the amount of $112,305.00

Prepared by: Leo Lessard, Public Works Director

Town Administrator Recommendation:

O, WA R,

Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Ph. D 7
Town Administrator




Staff Report AGENDANG. 3= U4
McDonalds Landscaping Surety Bond Releasg,rr. HZI%Z I S
November 13 2013

Background:
November 15 2011 McDonald restaurant on Hooksett Road was completed and

the landscaping bond was put in place fro 24 months per planning beard
regulations. The bond is in the amount of $22,500.00 This amount was due to be
released on Octiober 31, 2013. The departiment has inspected the site which is in
compliance.

issue:
| would like the Town Council to release this landscaping bond in the amount of
$22,500.00 to McDonalds Restaurant

Discussion:

After completing a site walk and investigation, the landscaping is in satisfactory
condition and | have not encountered any problems. The bond is two months
over due at this point.

Fiscal Impact:

None

Recommendation:

| recommend that the Town Council approve the release of the landscaping
Surety Bond in the amount of $22,500.00 to McDonalds Restaurant.

Prepared by: Leo Lessard, Public Works Director

Town Administrator Recommendation:

O, 2.4,

Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Ph. D
Town Administrator




Staff Report
Mega-l)o(- AQENDA NO._1 3~ s

November 13 2013 IDATE=_,!_|71LL3%L?2_«_@

Background:

November 9 2011 Mega X station on Hooksett Road was completed and the
landscaping bond was put in place fro 24 months per planning board regulations.
The bond is in the amount of $13,475.00 this amount was due to be released on
November 8, 2013. The department has inspected the site which is in
compliance.

Issue:
| would like the Town Council to release this landscaping bond in the amount of
$13,475 to Mega X

Discussion:

After completing a site walk and investigation, the landscaping is in satisfactory
condition and | have not encountered any problems. The bond is two months
over due at this point.

Fiscal Impact:

None

Recommendation:

| recommend that the Town Council approve the release of the landscaping
Surety Bond in the amount of $13,475 to Mega X.

Prepared by: Leo Lessard, Public Works Director

Town Administrator Recommendation:

L P

Df. Dean E. Shankle, Ph.
Town Administrator
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November 132013  ,,1p: _g_%g/, 12

Background:

On August 9, 2013 Mario Fradette General Contractor placed a Treasures check
in the amount of $17,843.40 for site Surety for the construction project of Bond
Auto Paris on 1109 Hooksett Road. The project is now completed an | am
requesting the Treasures check be released in the amount of $17,843.40. The
Town has the landscaping bond in had for two years in the amount of $4,835.00

Issue:

1 would like the Town Council to release this Treasure Check for the site surety
and plan compliance in the amount of $17,843.40. the project is now complete
and the bond should be released.

Discussion:
After completing a site visit and reviewing the as build with the engineer | find
that treasures check in the amount of $17,843.40 should be released.

Fiscal Impact:
None

Recommendation:
| recommend the Town Council approve the Treasure check in the amount of
$17,843.40 be released

Prepared by: Leo Lessard, Public Works Director

Town Administrator Recommendation:

D)

Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Ph. &
Town Administrator




Staff Report
Alarm System Monitoring

N-V3-V2 L F

The Town has had David Ross contracted out for the alarm systems in all the
buildings owned by the town for several years. The confract was due in July. The
Building Maintenance division has looked into other estimates for price checking.

Issue:

| had given the task to building maintenance to look into the price checking to
verify prices.

Discussion:

With the election David Ross as council, and discussions with Mr. Ross about
him working for the Town and being on council, Mr. Ross and Dr. Shankle and |
agreed this would be a good time tow look at prices.

Fiscal Impact:

This would cost the Town $2,670.00 for the basic monitoring of the system,
verses $2,640.00 from Mr. Ross. The other price was from Total Security which
was $2640.00 for just the basic.

Recommendation:

| would recommend that council accept Mr. Ross’s contract, for he has been with
the town for some time and Mr. Ross does supply a service to the Town. But
being on council | think its only right that the council make the decision on this
matter.

Prepared by: Leo Lessard, Public Works Director

Background:

Town Administrator Recommendation: Jﬁ;u % Je b a;_:gy\
% l/\ﬂﬁ, e M !

2

B 2H.12)3

Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Ph. D
Town Administrator
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Sy otalSecurity

BEEORAE 1T HAPRENE

www. T otalSecurityNH.com

(603) 524-2108 Fax

4135 Weirs Bivd. Laconiz,. MH 03248

Customer: Hooksett wan of

(800) 671-1086 (803) 524-2833

Billlng: Hooksett Town Of

INSTALLATION AGREEMENT
Date: )

Time:

Elaned
Technician:

Account #:

Scott Alessi Scott Alessi
210 West River Rd 210 West River Rd
Hooksett, NH 03106 Hooksett NH 03106

Phone: 603-668-8019 Other:

Description of equipment and services Tatal Security, Inc proposes to furnish herin; Oty
Station 1 ‘
Monitoring: Annual Fire Monitoring Rate, Tested Daily. Haven't seen Pane] may require 1 24000 -~ &‘
dialer at additional charpe, - &
Oliver Safety Center L o N~
Cominercial; Fire Alarm: Dual Line Dialer ——— 1 240.00 ? i&
Labor; Rate. — ] 400.00 §}
Monitoring: Annual Fire Monitoring Rate, Tested Daily, . 240.00

Town Garage

Monitoring: Annual Fire Monitoring Rate, Tested Daily. — 1 X 240,00 -
Monitoring: Annual Burglar Alarm Monitoring 3 240.00
Commercial: Fire Inspection® i _ 400.00
Recycle Center 7 )
Monitoring: Annnal Burslar Alarm Monitoring 1 240.00

0ld Town Hall N

Monitoring: Annual Burglar Alarm Monitoring 1 240.00

Town Hall S —
Monitoring: Annual Burglar Alarm Momtormg PO 1 X 240.00
Monitoring: Annual Fire Moniforing Rate, Tested Daily. 1 240,00
-Commercial: Fire Inspection® 1 800.00
Service Agreement: We don't offer service agreements on equipment that we don't install. 0.00

We can repair at time and material Basis

The IHookseii District Court Building is under State of NH Contract

If only one account number per location bill will be for only one monitoring

*?s%*) -

Totai Security, Inc. dewces include a one year paris & !abor warranty

Mani!ormg Rate

hnllu!arﬁackup

Otheruuacrluwn l'."

l Monthly § $ $ $

Subtotal: $3,760.00
50% Deposit:

| Total:
.{Annually$ Y $ 8 1 Monitoring:
' N T Balance:

Prices Valid 30 days from the authorized representative signed date. -




From: D.P.Ross [mailto:dpross@usa.het]
Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2013 8:42 AM
To: Scott Alessi

Subject: Monitoring Service proposals

Hi Scott,

As requested, here it s in writing:

Fire and Burglary Monitoring services for Town buildings remains $240.00 total per building, per year in
advance, which includes daily test signals. (Both systems utilize the same account)

Monitoring services are by Emergency 24, They were the first computerized monitoring service in the

country and have 5 locations connected via satellite, thereby providing significant redundancy during
disasters.

Activity printouts are available for $5.00 each. These can be retrieved at any time.
An approved Firelite (by Honeywell} Fire Alarm Dialer costs $390.00 Installed and programmed.
Cabling to and from it may incur additional costs if more than 20 feet away from services.

Two analog phone service lines are recommended, as digital lines can fail without notice {voltage remains,
but communications are not - the dialer thinks all is ok, when it [s not).

Annual Testing generally takes two hours at the most, costing $150.00. >
Device and battery replacements are provided on a case-by-case basis, time plus parts.

And, as always, my services are discounted {and as history proves, sometimas free) to the town.

At your service, David Ross, D.P.Ross Home Electronics, (est. 1992) 603-387-7777

> Attachment: winmail.dat
> MIME Type; application/ms-tnef
> B e S B 48




Staff Report
Revaluation Report

1/13/13"

Background: A report was given to Council on September 25, 2013 which
provided preliminary assessment figures from Vision Appraisal Solutions for the
2013 Revaluation.

Issue: Report of final assessment values

Discussion: Vision Appraisal Solutions has submitted the final assessed values
for the residential and commercial properties for 2013. A report of the resulting
values and ratios will be provided to the Council.

Prepared by: Lee Ann Moynihan

Town Administrator Recommendation: ..., .,

a7

Dean E. Shankle, Jr. fﬁ
Town Admini trator




ageNpA NG, (3110

PATE: l7/ ) 3/1-«3“—_
Staff Report

Technology Services RFP
November 13, 2013

Background: Over the past few years, the Town has worked to strengthen its [T
network. Last year alone, the Town has invested time and money to update
servers at Town Hall and software for the Finance office, Fire-Rescue and the
Police departments.

Discussion: The Town received six bids for Technology Service in October.
The chart below outlines the bids:

'VENDOR HOURS |ANNUAL COSTS
Boston Systems & Solutions Unlimited | $ 33,600
Mainstay Technologies Unlimited | 5 37,800
RMON Networks Unlimited | $ 38,160
Rockport Technology Group [Unlimited | $ 41,500 |
Acapella Technologies 468 | $ 42,120
2-Way Network Division  |Unlimited | $ 84,780

Staff is not recommending the lowest bidder, Boston Systems & Solutions due to
high cost for non-business hours, which are not included in the annual costs.
These costs can rise quickly with the Police and Fire-Rescue being 24 hour
operations.

At this time, the staff believes Mainstay Technologies is the best fit based on
their cost of services, qualifications, service history with the Town, and their
extensive municipal experience with other communities big and small.

Fiscal Impact: The current budget for IT Technical Service is $35,000

Recommendation: Motion to award the Technology Services contract to
Mainstay Technologies.

Prepared by: Christine Soucie, Finance Director

Town Administrator Recommendation:

AL SO

Dr. Dean E. Shankl
Town Administrator




~/0P
A\GENDANG._/S.
BATE: 2=/ e ="
Hooksett Fire-Rescue ) I// |3 / L3
Staff Report
Hooksett EOP updates 2013

41/_1}49_;7/19 13

Background: Iam required to update the Town of Hookseit Emergency Operations plan
when changes or personnel leave their assigned positions. This Operations plan is
relatively new, being totally updated in 2011. The Hooksett Emergency Operations Plan
covers all aspects of Emergency planning in our community.

Issue: The only changes to this update is the new Town Council members, a new Town
Adminisfrator, a new Emergency Manager, a new code enforcement officer, Police chief,
and Highway manager. Other than the name changes, no other parts of the plan have been
revised.

Discussion: 1 would recommend thét all Town Councilors become familure with this
operations plan in case it does need to be activated

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Recommendation: Accept all recommended changes as set forth

Prepared By: Chief Michacl Williams @

Town Administraters recommendation: [Neet—"

LL_LhAp

Dean Shankle
Town Administrator
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TOWN OF BOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

FOREWORD

The Town of Hooksett’s Emergency Operations Plan (HEOP) establishes a framework for
Hooksett to provide assistance in an expeditious manner to save lives and to protect property in
the event of a disaster. The Hooksett Office of Emergency Management (HOEM) appreciates
the continuing cooperation and support from all departments and agencies and to the volunteer
and private organizations, which have contributed to the development and publication of this
plan. Hooksett has worked with these groups to provide a forum for the departments and
agencies with identified responsibilities in the plan to participate in planning and exercise
activities in order to develop, maintain and enhance Hooksett’s response capability.

The purpose of the HEOP is to facilitate the delivery of all types of response assistance to
jurisdictions and to help them deal with the consequences of significant disasters. The plan
outlines the planning assumptions, policies, concept of operations, organizational structures and
specific assignments of responsibility to the towns departments and agencies involved in
coordinating the local response activities.

Michael Williams, Fire Chief/EM Director
Hooksett Emergency Management

vi



AQENDA _
Hooksett Fire-Rescue NG'—Q:—-,/,QM

Staff Report PATE: S
Fee Schedule Update ! |//
13/(3
Oeteber 42015
% 1-13-13

Background; Hooksett Fire-Rescue is looking to update the Fire-Rescue fee schedule to
accommodate the increases in NH retirement and benefits for the Firefighters detail rate.

Issue: Hooksett Fire-Rescue is looking to update our fees schedule o address the N.H
retirement downshifting, which is requiring us to increase our detai! rate pay fo cover
costs when firefighters conduct fire details.

Discussion; The discussion at hand is to approve the proposed rate increases for fire
- » e ——— T
detail rates in Hooksett.

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Recommendation; 1 would recommend that the Town of Hooksett approves the
proposed rate increases for the fire detail 1ates.

Prepared By: Chief Michael Williams @

Town Administrators recommendation: M Men—

KMl

Dean Shankle
Town Administrator




Hooksett Fire-Rescue
Fee Schedule - Effective October 2013

Description Valid for Fee
Assembly One Year $ 60.00
Blasting One Year $ 225,00
Daycare Facllilies
Family Daycare Heme; up te 6 children One Year $25.00
Group Daycare Homes; 7 - 12 children One Year $ 50,00
Daycare Centers; more than 12 children One Year $75.00
Fire Alarm Systern Installation Ninely Days $125.00
Over 256,000 Square Feet Protected Ninety Days $ 275.00
Fire Sprinkler Systems Installation
Residential Ninely Days $ 50.00
Commercial UNDER 25000 Square Feet Profecled Ninely Days $125.00
Commaercial OVER 25,000 Square Feet Protected Ninety Days $275.00
Non Permissible Fireworks Display One Day $ 12500
Fireworks Sales One Year $ 250.00
Gas Pipe Installation
Residentizl Ninety Days $ 35.00
Commercial Ninety Days $ 50.00
(Gas Burner Equipment hstallation
Resideniial Ninety Days $ 35.00 per
burner
Commercial Ninety Days $ 50.00 per
burner
Oil Burner Equipment Instaflation
Residendial Ninety Days $ 35,00 per
burner
Commercial Ninety Days $ 50.00 per
burner
Bullding Plan Review™*
Under 5,000 square feet $ 25.00
5,000 to 15,000 sguare feet $50.00
15,000 to 25,000 square fest $75.00
Qver 25,00 square feel $ 100.00
**This Jee includes two(2) reviews; any additional review(s) may require additional fee(s)_
Plan Review ( Fire Alarm, Sprinkler, Special Hazard, Life Safety)
Under $,000 sguare feet Per Building $60.00
5,000 fo 15,000 square feet Per Building $ 150.00
15,000 to 25,000 square feat Per Building $ 250.00
Qver 25,00 square feet Per Building $ 500.00
Special Hazard Systems {Restaurant, Carbon Dioxide, Clean Agent, etc)
Pre-Engineered Ninety Days $ 75.00
Engingered Ninety Days $ 125.00
Underground Storage Tanks installation Nineiy Days $ 75.00 per tank
LPG tanks 500 gallons or less not included
Underground Tank Storage Removal Ninety Days $ 75.00 per tank
Inspections (per permit / new construction}
One Rough Ingpection NIC
One Final Inspection NIC
Re-inspection {due fo falled ist inspeclion $ 75.00
Each Subsequent Inspaction $125.00
tncident / Investigation Reporis $ 20.00
Detail Rate per Firefighter with Four {4} hour minimum $74.00 per hour
Detail Rate per Firefighter with Four (4} hour minimum_for HYAA events only $62.00 per hour
Detail Rate for use of Fire Apparalus $65.00 per hour




AGENDANG._/S — /05

Hooksett Fire-Rescue
Staff report
PPE puichase
Oeteber$ 2013
=3 h—-13—173

Background: The Hookselt Voters approved $24,000.00 for the purchase of new
personal protective clothing for the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Department. Hooksett Fire-
Rescue currently has its own specification for what every firefighter wears for PPE,
(Personal protective equipment). This specification was sent out to bid for competitive
pricing.

Issue: NPFA 1851 standard on PPE states that there is a 10 year lifespan on all personal
proteciive clothing. This amount of money approved will replace 10 sets of our PPE
(personal protective clothing) this year.

¢ Discussion: Listed below outlines the 1 bid we received on our PPE specification.
¢ Bergeron Protective clothing: $2,394.16 per set

Fiscal Impaci; $24,000.00 which was approved by voters in May of 2013

Recommendation: 1 would recommend to the Town Council to accept the Bergeron

protective clothing bid in the amount of $2,394,16 per set and that we purchase 10 sets of
PPE this year in the amount of $23,941.60.

Prepared By; Chief Michael Williams /@
» ~ m
Town Administrators recommendation: (,uwe A ﬂé\
C)LZ,{ S W g ”"L“

Dean Shankle
Town Administrator




BERGERON

PRO TEQVE CLOTHING

TOWN OF

Hooksett, New Hdmpshm

Hooksett Fire-Rescue Department
RFP #13-07 -
Proposal for Structural Firefighting Personal Protective Equipment-
Turnout Gear

1024 Suncook Valley Hwy, Unit 5-D, Epsom, NH 03218
Office £03.736.8500 Fax 603.736.9115




7 Quote #: 133962
BERGE NS .

pﬂarsgvy CLOTHING Date: 02/12/2013
b aited Habily corapany Firm Until; 12/31/2013

—~

Hooksett Fire Department
Chief Michael Williams

15 Legends Street
Hooksett, NH 03106

[aty T stle | Description | Your Cost |
1 332LMB - G-Xtreme Jacket, Millenia 7.5 Oz Gold 1.179.11
Color: Gold -

Millania oufer shall, Caldura S12i thermal Liner, Stedair 3000 Moisture Barier, High
Visibility Style LfY Triple Tiim (Red/Orange for officers),Additional Thermat Liner In
Shoulders, Radio pocket LC 3x3.5x7, Sunlance RC, Black suede cuffs, Nomex hand
& wrist guards, Anlenna notch feft side radio pocket, Hung letter paich (for namas),
Self mic strap above radlo, Additional Thermal Liner upper arms, Helmet snap above
sunlance, seme height as top of stormflap & 1" from edge of storm flap,

19721 - 3" Scotchllie Letter 24.00
Color: LfYeliow, Location: Row A

HOOKSETT sewn on back of jacket.

19721 ~ 3" Scotchlite Letter 24.00
Color: LiYellow, Locafion: Hung Letter Patch

Last names on hung patch (Average B letters)

190306G - Closure-Zipper In, Hook & Dee Ring Out 0.00
Option when sizing: Add $3.10

H32IMB - Harmness Ready Pant Millenia XT 7.5 oz. 1,167.05
Coler: Gold

Millsnia outer shell, Caldura SL2i thermal liner, Stedair 3000 moisiure barrier, LY
tripte trim around cuffs (Red/Crange for officers), black suede knaes, silizone knee
padding,black suedes cuffs, padded rip-cord suspenders, Expansion Pockets linsd
with Kevlar Twill, Series Il Harngss System

TOTAL: $2,394.18

1024 Suncook Valley Hwy, Unit 5D ~ Epsom, New Hampshire 03234

Phone: (603) 736-8500 FAX: (603) 736-9115
Page 1 of 2




 From: BERGERON PROTECTIVE CLOTHING LLC Quote #: 133962

To: Hooksett Fire Department
Firm Until: 12/31/2013

Globe and Cairns Garments size 60 or larger, add 30% oversize charge.

Prices quoted are F.Q.B. Factory and do not includs shipping and handling charges. This quote is based on current prices
which are subject to change by the Manufacturer without notice, TERMS are NET 30 days. For Invoices $5,000.00 or greater,
a 3.5% processing fee will bs applied when paying by credit card. Shipping date Is approximately 90 Days A.R.O. for
custom-made coals and pants, 7 to 14 days on sfock ifems. i

1024 Suncook Valley Hwy, Unit 5D ~ Epsom, New Hampshire 03234
Phone: {603) 736-8500 FAX: (603) 738-2115
Page 2 of 2




Staff Report

2014 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE

November 13, 2013

Background:

Annually in October/November the holiday schedule for the following calendar
year is created and distributed to all staff of the Town of Hooksett. All Town
offices (with the exception of emergency services) are closed on these holiday
dates. The schedule is created in accordance with the Personnel Plan section 9
Holiday Leave.

Attachments

2014 Holiday Schedule and Personnel Plan section 9 Holiday Leave.

Fiscal Impact:

None.

Recommendation:

Recommend that the Town Council adopt the 2014 Holiday Schedule and
approve its distribution to all staff.

Prepared by:

Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator

Town Administrator Recommendation: jZ %%L

Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Jr
Town Administrator




DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2013

FROM: DONNA FITZPATRICK, ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COORD.

SUBJECT: 2014 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE

All Town offices (with the exception of emergency services) will be closed on the
below dates in observance of the associated holidays in accordance with the

Personnel Plan section 9 Holiday Leave.

A holiday that falls on a Saturday will be observed the day before on Friday.
A holiday that falls on a Sunday will be observed the following day on Monday.

Holiday

Date closed

New Year's Day (observed)

Wednesday, January 1, 2014

Martin Luther King Jr/Civil Rights Day

Monday, January 20, 2014

Washington’s Birthday/President’'s Day

Monday, February 17, 2014

Memorial Day

Monday, May 26, 2014

Independence Day

Friday, July 4, 2014

Labor Day

Monday, September 1, 2014

Columbus Day

Monday, October 13, 2014

Veterans' Day (observed)

Tuesday, November 11, 2014

Thanksgiving Day

Thursday, November 27, 2014

Day after Thanksgiving

Friday, November 28, 2014

Christmas Day (observed)

Thursday, December 25, 2014




TOWN OF HOOKSETT

PERSONNEL PLAN

This document supersedes all personnel policies previously
established or approved by the Town Council.

Approved - February 17, 2010
Latest revision — June 23, 2010



9. LEAVES of ABSENCE.

Holiday L eave. Full-fime employees are entitled to the paid holidays listed below. Holidays are
cbserved in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The foflowing list of
holidays are observed by the Town of Hooksett.

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King Jr./Civil Rights Day
President’s Day
Memorial Day
independence Day
Labor Day

Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

Holidays falling on a Saturday will be observed on the preceding Friday. Holidays falling on a
Sunday, will be observed on the following Monday. Employees who are absent without
authorization, on a work day directly preceding or following a holiday will not be paid for the
holiday. Fuil-time employees who do not work on holidays will be paid for the holidays

at their regular straight time rate. Those absent without pay on an extended authorized leave of
absence will not be paid holiday pay. Straight holiday pay shall be considered actual hours
worked and shall be figured in when calcutating overtime pay. Employees who work on holidays
will be paid for the holiday at the rate of one and one-haif (17} times for each hour worked, but in
no case will such employees be credited with less than two hours of work.

Vacation Leave. The purpose of vacation leave is to provide full-time employees the opportunity
for a break in their work schedule. The amount of vacation time earned annually is based on the
number of years empioyed. Vacation time is accrued monthly. Vacation accruals are as follows:

Vacation leave shall be accrued at the following rates for full-time employees beginning with their

first month of employment. The employee must start work by the 15" of the month in arder to
accrue in the first month.

During the first seven years of continuous service, the employee earns 6.66 hours per month.

This equates to ten 8-hour days per year. No more than 240 hours can be carried forward as of
June 30" each year.

At the beginning of the eighth year of continuous service through the fourteenth year of
continuous service, the employee earns ten hours per month. This equates to fifteen 8-hour
days per year. No more than 240 hours can be carried forward as of June 30"

At the beginning of the fifteenth year of continuous service and onward, the employee earns

13.33 hours per month, This equates to 20 8-hour days per year. No more than 320 hours can
be carried forward as of June 30%.

One vacation day equals one normal eight-hour work day. Vacation time may be used in
increments of one hour. If accruals exceed the maximum caps listed above, the accrual
overages are forfeited. No vacation leave shall be taken before acerual, Each month's accrual
will be officially accrued once the month has been completed and will be eligible for use on the
first day of the following month. As an example, vacation time accrued for January wilt be
available for use on February 1%, if a holiday occurs during a vacation, the employee may extend
their vacation for one day or take the vacation day at another time. Use of vacation leave at a
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